
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION MEETING 
 
 

June 12, 2014 
10:30 a.m. 

Hynes Convention Center 
900 Boylston Street, Room 200 

Boston, MA 
 
 

1



2



3



 

Meeting Minutes 

 
 

 

Date/Time: 

 

May 29, 2014 – 10:30 a.m. 

 

Place:  Boston Convention and Exhibition Center 

415 Summer Street, Room 107A 

Boston, Massachusetts 

 

Present: Commissioner Stephen P. Crosby, Chairman  

Commissioner Gayle Cameron 

Commissioner James F. McHugh 

Commissioner Bruce Stebbins 

Commissioner Enrique Zuniga 

 

Absent: None 

 
 

Clicking on the time posted in the margin will link  

directly to the appropriate section of the video. 
 

 

Call to Order 

See transcript page 2.   

 

10:30 a.m. Chairman Crosby called to order the 122nd public meeting. 

 

Approval of Minutes 

See transcript pages 2-4.   

 

10:30 a.m. Commissioner McHugh stated that the minutes for May 15 are ready for approval. 

 

 Motion made by Commissioner McHugh that the minutes of May 15, 2014 be 

accepted subject to the two corrections discussed and any mechanical or 

typographical corrections that may later be made. Motion seconded by 

Commissioner Stebbins.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Design Excellence 

See transcript pages 4-30. 

 

10:32 a.m. John Nunnari, on behalf of the American Institute of Architects, presented his 

comments on the process for reviewing the design of the three Category 1 

proposals. 

4

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=0s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=18s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=138s


Massachusetts Gaming Commission Minutes, Public Meeting #122                     May 29, 2014 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 

Administration 

See transcript pages 30-124. 

 

11:02 a.m. Executive Director Day presented a proposed schedule for deliberations and making 

the licensing determination in Region B. 

 

11:07 a.m. Executive Director Day, Jennifer Pinck, Bill Perry, John Rauen, Mike McGrew, and 

Emil Giordano presented to the Commission the preliminary schedule for the 

construction of the Plainridge Park Casino.  

 

11:41 a.m. Motion made by Commissioner McHugh that the Commission preliminarily 

approve the project schedule presented for the Plainridge Park Casino, with the 

understanding that the Commission will vote for a final approval of the schedule on 

June 26, 2014. Motion seconded by Commissioner Cameron. The motion passed 

unanimously.  

 

11:43 a.m. The Commission took a brief recess. 

 

11:55 a.m. Executive Director Day and Director Lennon provided an overview of the 

Commission’s draft budget for fiscal year 2015.  

 

12:53 p.m. The Commission took a recess for lunch. 

 

1:33 p.m. Chairman Crosby discussed making a change in the section relative to the $600 tax 

withholding contained in the letter that the Commission sent to the legislature. It 

was agreed that the change would be made and the letter recirculated. 

 

Racing Division 

See transcript pages 124-167. 

 

1:37 p.m. Director Durenberger presented an administrative update relative to construction at 

Plainridge, website enhancements, regulatory initiatives, and the race horse 

development fund. 

 

1:44 p.m. Director Durenberger presented her memo on horse welfare values and the public 

comments that the Commission has received. She recommended that the 

Commission adopt the resolution included in the packet and endorse the guidelines. 

 

2:21 p.m. Director Durenberger provided a brief overview of the National Racing Regulatory 

Compact and the future discussions she plans to have. 

 

2:22 p.m. Director Durenberger discussed Suffolk Down’s request to amend the live racing 

schedule and informed the Commission that she has approved the request. 

 

Legal Division 

5

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=1957s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=2265s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=4294s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=4375s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=4379s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=7844s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=7855s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=8131s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=8515s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=10713s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=10763s


Massachusetts Gaming Commission Minutes, Public Meeting #122                     May 29, 2014 

 

 

 

 

Page 3 

 

 

 

See transcript pages 168-196. 

 

2:23 p.m. Director Wells and Attorney Lillios presented the 205 CMR 141 draft regulations 

on surveillance and the 205 CMR 142 draft regulations on administrative searches. 

Both regulations are being posted for informal public comment. 

 

2:39 p.m. Deputy General Counsel Grossman discussed the legal division’s research relative 

to whether the provisions of the banking laws would affect a gaming licensee’s 

ability to place ATMs in the gaming establishment.  

 

2:41 p.m. General Counsel Blue discussed the legal division’s research relative to the state of 

the law to determine the standard of review for disadvantaged business enterprises 

and research relative to enforcement mechanisms. 

 

2:53 p.m. Chairman Crosby left the meeting. The Commission took a brief recess. 

 

Ombudsman Report 

See transcript pages 197-246. 

 

3:10 p.m. Ombudsman Ziemba provided an update on the master licensing schedule for 

Region A and the current progress in reaching surrounding community agreements. 

 

3:22 p.m. Ombudsman Ziemba presented a joint request from Wynn MA, LLC and the City 

of Chelsea for a variance from the Commission’s arbitration regulations to provide 

an additional 7 days to complete the arbitration process as a supplement to the 

flexible 14 days that staff has already provided. 

 

3:25 p.m. Motion made by Commissioner Stebbins that the Commission grant a variance as 

requested by the city of Chelsea and Wynn MA, LLC to the time constraints of 

section 125.01(6)(c) to allow the arbitrator to issue his report on June 9, 2014. 

Motion seconded by Commissioner Zuniga. The motion passed unanimously with a 

4-0 vote.  

 

3:26 p.m. The Commission discussed the decision making process in Region A.  

 

4:04 p.m.  Meeting adjourned.  

 

 

 

List of Documents and Other Items Used 
 

1. Massachusetts Gaming Commission May 29, 2014 Notice of Meeting and Agenda 

2. Massachusetts Gaming Commission May 15, 2014 Meeting Minutes 

3. May 27, 2014 AIA Massachusetts Memorandum Regarding Request Seeking Public 

Comment: Design for Category 1 Applications 

4. Emails Regarding Public Comments on Building Design of Category 1 

6

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=10846s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=11846s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=11985s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=12673s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=12673s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=13408s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=13603s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=13644s
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lBUi6ft_MZc#t=15945s


Massachusetts Gaming Commission Minutes, Public Meeting #122                     May 29, 2014 

 

 

 

 

Page 4 

 

 

 

5. Plainridge Park Casino Project Summary Schedule Submitted to MGC May 27, 2014 

6. Preliminary Schedule Review – Perry and Associates, LLC 

7. May 27, 2014 Massachusetts Gaming Commission Memorandum Regarding FY15 Initial 

Budget Recommendation with attachments 

8. May 29, 2014 MGC Division of Racing Memorandum Regarding Welfare Initiatives 

with Attachments 

9. May 22, 2014 Suffolk Downs Letter Regarding Live Racing Schedule 

10. DRAFT 205 CMR 141 

11. DRAFT 205 CMR 139 

12. DRAFT 205 CMR 142 

13. Massachusetts Gaming Commission 5-21-2014 Licensing Schedule Update 

14. Wynn MA, LLC and City of Chelsea Variance Request 

 

 

/s/ Catherine Blue 

Catherine Blue 

Assistant Secretary 

7



Summary of Somerville Objections to Wynn BAFO 

6/12/14 

 1 

Subject Wynn BAFO Term  Somerville Objection Citations Staff Recommendation 

Impact of 

Reaching 

Agreement  

General Recitations: 

 

“And whereas, Somerville 

may be impacted by the 

development of the Project, 

and the Act and regulations 

relating thereto, including 

205 CMR 125.00 et seq., 

permit Wynn to enter 

surrounding community 

agreements to address 

surrounding community 

impact as well as 

demonstrate advancement of 

the Act and public support 

for its proposed 

development…” 

 

Exhibit C, p. 1:  

 

“The City contends that the emphasized 

language above must be struck as neither the 

Gaming Act nor regulations thereto 

necessitate that a surrounding community 

agreement require or serve as demonstration 

of ‘public support’.” 

None cited. Not fundamentally inconsistent with c.23K. 

The standard of review pursuant to commission 

recommendations is whether a provision is 

fundamentally inconsistent with c. 23K. 

This language is part of the general recitations 

and does not require the municipality to publicly 

support the applicant’s project. 

 

Duty to Work 

with Applicant 

General Recitations:  

 

“And whereas, Wynn 

desires to mitigate any 

adverse ... and Somerville 

desires to mitigate any 

anticipated adverse impacts 

from the development and 

operation of the Project 

through the means described 

herein, and to work 

proactively with Wynn to 

capitalize on the unique 

nature of Somerville's 

community resources…” 

 

Exhibit C, p. 1: 

 

“The City contends that the emphasized 

language above must be struck as neither the 

Gaming Act nor regulations thereto 

necessitate that a surrounding community 

agreement require or serve as demonstration 

of ‘public support’ or that the City will 

‘work proactively’ with an applicant relative 

to a proposed gaming establishment.” 

None cited. Not fundamentally inconsistent with c.23K. 

The standard of review pursuant to commission 

recommendations is whether a provision is 

fundamentally inconsistent with c. 23K. 

This language is part of the general recitations 

and does not require the municipality to publicly 

support the applicant’s project.  In addition, the 

purpose of a surrounding community agreement 

is for both the municipality and the applicant to 

work proactively to mitigate impacts. 

 

Cross-Promotion Section 1.2: Exhibit C, p. 2:  None cited. Not fundamentally inconsistent with c.23K. 

8



Summary of Somerville Objections to Wynn BAFO 

6/12/14 

 2 

Subject Wynn BAFO Term  Somerville Objection Citations Staff Recommendation 

 

"The Parties acknowledge 

and agree that the proximity 

of the Project to the 

Assembly Row and 

Assembly Square 

developments and the desire 

to cross-promote the 

projects .. . " 

 

 

Same as with respect to duty to cooperate 

with applicant above. 

The standard of review pursuant to commission 

recommendations is whether a provision is 

fundamentally inconsistent with c. 23K. 

This language does not require the municipality 

to cross promote Assembly Row, Assembly 

Square and the applicant’s project.  It is 

suggestion which the parties could agree to. 

Acknowledgment 

of Mitigation 

Section 1.3:  

 

“The Project may have an 

impact on municipal 

services and require 

additional expenditures by 

Somerville in order to 

provide such services. 

Wynn's payments to 

Somerville under this 

Agreement will provide 

Somerville with adequate 

resources to mitigate any 

such impacts and Somerville 

acknowledges and agrees 

that such payments 

adequately mitigate all such 

impacts.” 

 

Exhibit C, p. 2:  

 

“The Gaming Act does not require 

Somerville to make such an 

acknowledgment that payments will 

‘adequately mitigate all such impacts’ and 

regulations (i.e. 205 CMR 127) allow for the 

parties to reopen an agreement in the event 

of certain triggering events.” 

205 CMR 127, regarding reopening of 

mitigation agreements, is cited generally. 

Fundamentally inconsistent with c.23K. 

The standard of review pursuant to commission 

recommendations is whether a provision is 

fundamentally inconsistent with c. 23K. 

205 CMR 127 provides for the reopening of 

mitigation agreements under certain 

circumstances.  This language could be read to 

negate the rights provided under 205 CMR 127. 

Obligations 

Contingent on 

Grant of 

“Unconditional” 

License 

Sections 2.1, 2.2, 5.1, 5.2, 

5.3, 5.4, 5.5, 6.2, and 9.3 

 

Making obligations 

contingent “upon the receipt 

of an unconditional, non-

Exhibit C, p. 2:  

 

“The City contends that the use of the phrase 

‘unconditional’ license is not consistent with 

the Gaming Act and regulations.” 

G.L. c. 23K, § 21(a):  

 

“The commission shall prescribe the form 

of the gaming license, which shall include, 

but not be limited to, the following license 

conditions for each licensee.” 

Fundamentally inconsistent with c.23K. 

The standard of review pursuant to commission 

recommendations is whether a provision is 

fundamentally inconsistent with c. 23K. 

Chapter 23K provides that licenses may be 

9



Summary of Somerville Objections to Wynn BAFO 

6/12/14 

 3 

Subject Wynn BAFO Term  Somerville Objection Citations Staff Recommendation 

appealable License…”  issued with conditions as required by the 

Commission.  At a minimum, all licenses are 

issued with the conditions required by statute. 

Duty to 

Cooperate on 

Transportation 

Projects 

Section 5.5:  

 

“The Parties acknowledge 

and agree that Wynn intends 

to implement a water 

transportation program to 

service the Project. The 

Parties will work together in 

good faith to facilitate water 

transportation connections 

between Somerville and, in 

particular, the Assembly 

Row and Assembly Square 

developments, and the 

Project." 

 

Exhibit C, p. 2-3: 

 

“Nothing in the Gaming Act or regulations 

thereto requires that the City agree to any 

measure Wynn may propose with respect to 

transportation to the Project. Any such 

proposed service is subject to all applicable 

permitting requirements. Further, an 

obligation to facilitate transportation 

connections between the City and the Project 

cannot be imposed upon the City without the 

City's approval, and a mitigation agreement 

cannot require the City to work together or 

support the Applicant's efforts.” 

None cited.  

Not fundamentally inconsistent with c.23K. 

The standard of review pursuant to commission 

recommendations is whether a provision is 

fundamentally inconsistent with c. 23K. 

This language does not require the municipality 

to facilitate water transportation connections; 

rather it requires the parties to work in good 

faith toward that goal.  Chapter 23K does not 

prohibit the parties from working in good faith 

on any issues. 

Duty to Utilize 

Best Efforts to 

Apply for Funds 

Section 7.1:  

 

“Somerville, in coordination 

with Wynn, shall exercise 

best efforts to petition the 

Massachusetts Gaming 

Commission for monies 

made available under the 

Act, including, but not 

limited to, those monies in 

the Community Mitigation 

Fund and the Transportation 

Infrastructure Fund.” 

Exhibit C, p. 3: 

 

“While a community may apply to receive 

funds under various funds established by 

MGL c. 23K, nothing therein can be 

construed so as to require a community to 

‘exercise best efforts’ to do so. The 

obligation imposed in this paragraph is 

similar to other provisions Wynn seeks to 

elicit Somerville's support by way of its best 

and final offer and is wholly inconsistent 

with the Gaming Act and purposes of a 

surrounding community agreement.” 

 

 

 

None cited.  

Fundamentally inconsistent with c.23K. 

The standard of review pursuant to commission 

recommendations is whether a provision is 

fundamentally inconsistent with c. 23K. 

Municipalities may, but are not required to, 

apply for funding from the Community 

Mitigation Fund.  Chapter 23K, however, 

requires that funding for known impacts be 

addressed as fully as possible in the surrounding 

community agreement without reliance on the 

Community Mitigation Fund. 

10



Summary of Somerville Objections to Wynn BAFO 

6/12/14 

 4 

Subject Wynn BAFO Term  Somerville Objection Citations Staff Recommendation 

Capped 

Reimbursement 

Section 8.1: 

 

“In accordance with the 

terms of205 CMR 

114.03(2)(a), Wynn agrees 

to reimburse Somerville for 

actual, documented out-of-

pocket expenses ... 

Notwithstanding, ... in no 

event shall Wynn's 

obligation hereunder exceed 

...[$150,000].” 

Exhibit C, p. 3-4: 

 

“Chapter 23K does not limit the amount that 

a gaming licensee must reimburse for 

consultant and legal expenses of a 

community and does not apply only to 

‘negotiation’ of such an agreement, but also 

the execution thereof.” 

None cited by Somerville. 

 

205 CMR 114.03(2)(a), cited in BAFO:  

 

“Based on a letter of authorization to the 

commission signed by authorized 

representatives of an applicant and a host 

or surrounding municipality or by an 

applicant and a regional planning agency, 

the commission may, at any time and from 

time to time, make community 

disbursements to that host or surrounding 

municipality or regional planning agency 

from available amounts paid by that 

applicant to the commission for 

community disbursements. If the total 

amount of payments authorized by an 

applicant exceeds the initial $50,000 

amount the applicant shall immediately 

pay to the commission all such additional 

amounts authorized by such letters of 

authorization for community 

disbursements. If the applicant fails to pay 

any such additional amount to the 

commission within 30 days after 

notification from the commission of 

insufficient funds, the application shall be 

rejected.” 

 

 

Not fundamentally inconsistent with c.23K. 

The standard of review pursuant to commission 

recommendations is whether a provision is 

fundamentally inconsistent with c. 23K. 

 

Chapter 23K does not prohibit the parties from 

agreeing to a cap on the amount that an applicant 

must reimburse for consulting and legal 

expenses.   

Reopener Section 9.14: 

 

“In addition, consistent with 

the regulations promulgated 

by the Commission and, in 

particular, 205 CMR 127.00 

Exhibit C, p. 4: 

 

“The intent and requirements of this clause 

in paragraph 9.14 is vague and ambiguous. 

To the extent that Wynn seeks to link the 

reopening procedures set forth in 205 CMR 

205 CMR 127, regarding reopening of 

mitigation agreements, is cited generally. 
 

Not fundamentally inconsistent with c.23K. 

The standard of review pursuant to commission 

recommendations is whether a provision is 

11



Summary of Somerville Objections to Wynn BAFO 

6/12/14 

 5 

Subject Wynn BAFO Term  Somerville Objection Citations Staff Recommendation 

Reopening Mitigation 

Agreements, Wynn and 

Somerville shall negotiate in 

good faith to determine 

whether an amendment to 

this Agreement is necessary 

if a ‘triggering event’ ( as 

defined in 205 CMR 127.02) 

occurs.” 

 

127 to the studies referenced earlier in 

Paragraph 9.14, that is plainly inconsistent 

with 205 CMR 127. Further, to the extent 

Wynn seeks to modify the terms set forth in 

205 CMR 127 relative to the rights of a party 

which believes a triggering event has 

occurred, such limitations are also 

inconsistent with 205 CMR 127.” 

fundamentally inconsistent with c. 23K. 

It is not fundamentally inconsistent with c.23K 

for the parties to agree to negotiate in good faith 

regarding an amendment to the agreement. 

 

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



 
 
 
 
 

4 – NO DOCUMENTS 

80



 
 
 
 
 
 

5(a) – NO DOCUMENTS 

81



MASSACHUSETTS GAMING 
COMMISSION
Central Management System 
Digital Regulation – using data to regulate

82



CENTRAL MANAGEMENT / MONITORING SYSTEM
DIGITAL REGULATION – USING DATA TO REGULATE 

• Since January 2014 a three member MGC Central Management System (CMS) 
Procurement Management Team (PMT) representing Finance and Accounting, Licensing, 
and Information Technology has been conducting due diligence into the options for a 
technology based regulatory model for MGC. 

• These “systems” capture Electronic Gaming Device (EGD) data in each facility, and 
replicate / concatenate that data in a central location from numerous facilities.

• The PMT has met with three vendors and visited a location where regulators use a CMS to 
regulate (Ohio, Delaware, and Rhode Island). 

• Penn National Gaming recommended in a May 22 letter that MGC not use a  CMS as a 
component of our regulatory model. 

• Staffing models – Using a CMS would require a 24x7 Network Operations Center with 2-3 
FTE’s per shift.  CMS operations in a 3-4 venue scenario would require approximately 12-
15 FTE’s. A non-CMS (field audit and use of property systems) would require approximately 
6 Gaming Lab Field Support Technicians and 6 Internal Field Auditors.   

1 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION

83



CENTRAL MANAGEMENT / MONITORING SYSTEM
DIGITAL REGULATION – USING DATA TO REGULATE 

2 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION

84



CENTRAL MANAGEMENT / MONITORING SYSTEM
DIGITAL REGULATION – USING DATA TO REGULATE 

3 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION

85



CENTRAL MONITORING SYSTEM

The CMS Procurement Management team recommends the Commission 
consider the use of a central monitoring system for regulating the slots 
operations of licensees.  The central monitoring system performs the following 
high level functions:

• Verifies the location of each physical asset and the software operating in the 
asset

• Verifies only approved software is operating on a gaming floor

• Allows for post audit of game play and payouts of specific machines and 
software packages

• Provides a daily statement of dollars played and paid by individual machine 
to calculate daily taxes due to the Commonwealth

• Generates a daily or weekly tax bill/statement

4 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION

86



FINANCIAL OVERSIGHT

To verify revenue the Commonwealth will use multiple sources to provide 
financial oversight of the licensee operations including but not limited to:

• Daily comparison of CMS reports to licensee slots accounting system 
reports

• Required licensee annual audit and review of audited financials by 
investigations and enforcement bureau

• Development and promulgation of internal control regulations for financial 
and cash operations of licensees

• Review of internal controls and regular testing by gaming agents MGC 
finance staff 

5 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION

87



CENTRAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Accounting
- Flexible Accounting periods and business day configuration

- Flexible Commission and taxation configuration

- Accounting / Reporting based on gross meter snapshots

- The difference between two consecutive daily checkpoint snapshots is the 
net meter amount

- Net meters are used to calculate derivative accounting meters

- Game meters – Game meters are also recorded. This allows for verification 
of performance on a game by game basis for multi-game machines. This also 
allows for verifying theoretical vs. actual payout on a game by game (paytable 
by paytable)

6 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION

88



CENTRAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Real Time Monitoring
- Events are logged locally to an premise site controller / server and uploaded to 

the central system periodically. 

- Monitoring the status of EGMs along with alarms (events), hand pays and real 
time meters.

- Meters can be configured to be sent to the central system on a near real time 
basis.

- Monitored events can be configured by severity. Critical events can be uploaded 
to the central system immediately and called out on the Real Time Monitor in the 
Network Operations Center. Other events, such as game idle can be ignored. 

- Graphical view of the casino floor with EGD’s - monitor and report each EGD on 
the floor individually, by group or as a whole. 

- Alarms and colors designate status and events on individual EGD’s 

7 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION

89



CENTRAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Real Time Monitoring (continued)

CMS Monitors Electronic Gaming Devices (EGD) for exceptions and conditions 
including:

EGD is in Disabled status: 
• Signature check failed
• Paytable check failed
• Invalid RAM Clear
• EGD is reporting zero meters

EGD is in Not Connected status:
• System Management Interface Board (SMIB) has lost communication 

with the EGD 
• Site Controller has lost communication with the SMIB

Specific critical events are pro-actively reviewed including: Memory Faults, 
Logic Door Open, Life to Date Meters Reset

8 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION

90



CENTRAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Finance and IEB Reporting 
- Monitoring Reports – Meters, Meter Exceptions, and Events

- Accounting Reports – Accounting and Financial Data, Money Reconciliation

- Audit Reports – Changes to EGM and System Configuration

- Statistical Reports – Theoretical vs. Actual

- Performance Reports – Weekly, Monthly, Averages

- Voucher Reports

- Payout Reporting – Jackpots, local, progressive, wide area

- Slot Accounting – Ticket in / Ticket out (TITO)

- Forensic Reporting – Point in time events for IEB Investigations (Patron 
complaints, video surveillance follow-up, etc.)   

9 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION

91



CENTRAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

10 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION

Addendum - SAS & G2S Protocols

Feature G2S SAS
Meter Collection Available Available
Configuration Extended Limited
Event Collection Extended Limited
Validations/TITO Available Available
Downloading Available No Support
Player User Interface Available No Support/Additional HW Req
Responsible Gaming Available No Support
Marketing Messages Available No Support
Protocol Security PKI Limited
Player Centric Applications No SMIB SMIB Required
Future Protocol Support On-Going NO SUPPORT/SUNSET

92



Row Labels FY15 Initial Rec Change FY15 Current Rec  Change Notes 

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

Budget

AA-REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 4,975,166.60            297,884.38        5,273,050.98                 Addition of one counsel and two financial investigators

BB-REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN 80,900.00                 -                      80,900.00                       

CC-SPECIAL EMPLOYEES 131,412.50               -                      131,412.50                     

DD-PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX 1,348,548.83            82,454.40          1,431,003.23                 Fringe costs for three FTEs

EE-ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 503,569.71               -                      503,569.71                     

GG-ENERGY COSTS AND SPACE RENTAL 633,157.52               -                      633,157.52                     

HH-CONSULTANT SVCS (TO DEPTS) 6,060,200.00            (380,338.78)       5,679,861.22                 

Decrease from consultants for costs of one counsel and two financial investigators.  If hire 

dates are missed money can be moved back to consultants.

JJ-OPERATIONAL SERVICES 2,935,016.31            -                      2,935,016.31                 

KK-EQUIPMENT PURCHASE 161,500.00               -                      161,500.00                     

LL-EQUIPMENT LEASE-MAINTAIN/REPAR 33,458.00                 -                      33,458.00                       

MM-PURCHASED CLIENT/PROGRAM SVCS 35,000.00                 -                      35,000.00                       

PP-STATE AID/POL SUB 3,841,814.00            -                      3,841,814.00                 

UU-IT Non-Payroll Expenses 3,816,811.00            -                      3,816,811.00                 

Budget Total 24,556,554.47         -                      24,556,554.47               

Revenue

Gaming Control Fund Beginning Balance 14,000,000.00          -                      14,000,000.00               

Gaming Employee License Fees 82,500.00                 -                      82,500.00                       

Gaming Service Employee Initial License 75.00                         -                      75.00                               

Grant Collections 700,000.00               -                      700,000.00                     

Key Gaming Employee 197,500.00               -                      197,500.00                     

Non-Gaming Vendor 12,000.00                 -                      12,000.00                       

Region A Slot Machine Fee 1,860,000.00            (377,096.00)       1,482,904.00                 Assuming award date of 9/12 and $600 pro-rated for 291 days

Region B Slot Machine Fee 1,800,000.00            -                      1,800,000.00                 

Region C Phase 1 Investigation Collections 400,000.00               -                      400,000.00                     

Region C Phase 2 Category 1 Collections 800,000.00               -                      800,000.00                     

Slots Parlor Slot Machine Fee Phase II Slot 750,000.00               -                      750,000.00                     

Subcontractor ID Initial License 200.00                       -                      200.00                            

Temporary License Initial License 100.00                       -                      100.00                            

Transfer of Licensing Fees to CMF (17,500,000.00)        -                      (17,500,000.00)              

Vendor Gaming Primary 900,000.00               -                      900,000.00                     

Vendor Gaming Secondary 150,000.00               -                      150,000.00                     

Veterans Initial License 100.00                       -                      100.00                            

Revenue Total 4,152,475.00            (377,096.00)       3,775,379.00                 

Assessment 20,781,175.47               

93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov
2014

Dec Jan Feb Mar
2015

Apr

9/30
MGC Receives Applications Phase I (Region C)

8/18
Approval C1

2/9

Commission Awards  
C1 License Region C

9/23

Deadline for Region C 
C1 Applications

12/29
FI Decision

6/13
Commission Awards Category 1 License - REGION B

12/18
Approval C1

12/31
Deadline for C1 Applications

5/2
FI Decision

5/15

Designation of 
Boston as a SC 7/17

FI Decision
9/12
Commission Awards Category 1 License - REGION A with Flex 14

1/6
End Arbitration

1/8
Closing HC Hearing

5/14
Closing HC Hearing Springfield

7/30

Closing HC 
Hearing Everett

7/29

Closing HC 
Hearing Revere

4/1
HC Hearing Springfield

5/9
End Arbitration

6/25

HC Hearing 
Everett

6/24

HC Hearing
 Revere 7/21

End Arbitration

7/24
SC Agreement

0

0

10/1 5/31

Background Investigations / Suitability of Applicants - Phase 1 Region C

10 6/30

MGC Review

30 8/4

Hearings Period

35

Suitability

14 9/24 12/17

Commission Reviews Responses to RFA-2 (C1)

85

10/3

SC File App

10

10/4 10/13

App Response

10

10/14 10/23

MGC Decides SC

10

10/24 11/24

Negotiation & Sign SC

32

12/2 12/22

Arbitration

21 1/9 2/9

          MGC Review RFA-2
          & Awards License C1

32

6/1 9/23

Prepare & Submit Phase 2 Applications - Category 1 License

9/9

HCA Approved by 
Referendum / C1 Region C

60 9/19

Results

10

9/23

. Surrounding Community Agreements Executed

233 125

7/11

Host Community Agreement Executed

12/18

MGC Review and Suitability Determination (C1)

118

12/31

re & Submit Phase 2 Applications - Category 1 License

12/31

11/19

HCA Approved by 
Referendum / Category 1

72

      Referendum 
Results

10

1/2 4/28

Commission Reviews Responses to RFA-2 (C1) - REGION B

117

1/10

SC File App

10

1/11
1/28

App Response

18

1/29 2/18

MGC Decides SCs - Region B

21

2/19 3/20

Negotiation & Sign SC

30

4/30

Arbitration

41 5/15 6/13

MGC Review RFA-2
& Awards Licenses C1/RB

7 23

1/29

MGC Decides SCs

107 5/16 6/16

Negotiation & Sign SC

6 26

7/14

Arbitration

28

7/31 8/29

MGC Review RFA-2
& Awards Licenses C1/RA

30

1/2 5/30

Commission Reviews Responses to RFA-2 (C1) - REGION A

140 9

1/10

SC File App

10

1/11
1/28

App Response

18

with Flex 14

14

05/21/2014

Massachusetts Gaming Commission / 2014-05-21 Licensing Schedule Update
(Estimated Based on Arbitration Regulations Timeline Projections)

Data Date

CATEGORY 1 LICENSE - REGION C

CATEGORY 1 LICENSE - REGION B

CATEGORY 1 LICENSE - REGION A

8/29
Commission Awards Category 1 License - REGION A

B1

107



Application Date
Referendum Deadline Assuming

10-Day Election Certification

60 Days Prior to 

Referendum

90 Days Prior to 

Referendum

Tuesday, September 23, 2014 Friday, September 12 Monday, July 14 Saturday, June 14

REGION C

HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENT DEADLINE

108



Walter J. Sullivan, Jr,

wsultivantmpreti.corn

Direct Dial. (617) 226-3882

June 11,2014

Portland, ME

Augusta, ME

Concord, NH

Boston, MA

Washington DC

Bedmlnster NJ

Salem, MA

Stephen Crosby, Chair
Massachusetts Gaming Commission
84 State Street, 10th Floor
Boston, MA 02109

Re: Clairvest Group Inc. and Claremont Companies, Inc. Request the
Commission Reopen Region C for a Catezorv 1 Gamine License —Resort
Casino —Rerelease Phase 1 Application for Region C

Dear Chair Crosby;

Clairvest Group Inc. ("Clairvest") and Claremont Companies, Inc, ("Claremont"),

collectively "The Group," requests that the Commission reopen the application process to build a
resort-casino in Region C - rerelease phase 1 application for Region C,

The Group had planned, together with an approved applicant, to submit a Phase 2

application for the Region C license to build a resoit-casino in Bridgewater, Massachusetts, at

the intersection of two major highways, Route 24 and Interstate Route 495. However, based on

the Commission's recent decision regarding the variance request with respect to capital

investment, the applicant decided not to compete for the category 1 license for Region C, The

Group wants to compete for the resort-casino license, as it has the resources and what it believes

to be the best location to make the development a success,

Clairvest is a Canadian-based private equity management firm that was founded in 1987,
It invests its capital and capital from private equity funds in entrepreneurial corporations, and

manages approximately $ 1.4billion. To date, Clairvest has made investments in 38 different

companies, and has been invested in 20 individual gaming establishments in the jurisdictions of
British Columbia, Alberta, New Brunswick, Indiana, New Jersey, Illinois and the country of
Chile. It has the capital and expertise required to build a first class resort-casino in

Massachusetts.

Claremont is a privately owned and closely held real estate investment, development and

asset management firm. It is headquartered in Bridgewater, Massachusetts. Claremont's real

estate investment portfolio consists of large scale apartment complexes, multi-family homes,

office building, retail centers and hotels. Together with Clairvest it has the development

expertise to build a first class resort-casino in Massachusetts.

Preti Ftaherty

Beliveau 5 Pachios LLP

Attorneys at Law Ten Post Office Square, Boston, MA 02109
~

Tel 617,226,3B00 l www,preti.cops61124169.1



PRETI FLAHERTY

June 11,2014
Page 2

The Group believes there currently are no viable applicants for a casino license in Region
C, and as such the Group requests that the Commission exercises its authority, and put the
Region C license back out to bid, and re-release phase 1 application for Region C, Putting the
Region C license back out to bid would ensure the most gaming and entertainment revenue and

the greatest number of jobs for the Commonwealth and Region C, It would also be in the best
interest of the citizens of the Commonwealth and the region, as well as the cities and towns of
the region. A Bridgewater resort-casino would ensure both temporary and permanent jobs, as
well as benefit existing business in the area and create new business, since the Commonwealth

would have a viable and sustainable resort-casino that can not only repatriate dollars back to the
Commonwealth, but also be well positioned to create destination dollars with its proximate to a
major interstate and state highway.

Thank you for your consideration of this request, If you have any questions or concerns
regarding the request, please do not hesitate to contact me.

WJS;dc
Enclosure

6824169.1



SLOT MACHINES AND 
GAMING POSITIONS 

MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION 

109



1,250 CAP FOR SLOTS PARLOR 

"Category 2 license'', a license issued by the commission 
that permits the licensee to operate a gaming establishment 
with no table games and not more than 1,250 slot 

machines. G.L. c. 23K, § 2 

@MASSGAMINGCOMM 1 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION 

110



SLOT MACHINE 

"Slot machine'', a mechanical, electrical or other 

device, contrivance or machine which, upon insertion of 

a coin, token or similar object therein, or upon payment 

of any consideration whatsoever, is available to play or 

operate, the play or operation of which, whether by 

reason of the skill of the operator or application of the 

element of chance, or both, may deliver or entitle the 

individual playing or operating the machine to receive 

cash, or tokens to  be exchanged for cash, or to receive 

merchandise or any other thing of value, whether the 

payoff is made automatically from the machine or in any 

other manner, except that the cash equivalent value of 

any merchandise or other thing of value shall not be 

included in determining the payout percentage of a slot 

machine. G.L. c. 23K, § 2 

111



GAMING DEVICE 

"Gaming device'' or "gaming 

equipment'', an electronic, electrical 

or mechanical contrivance or machine 

used in connection with gaming or a 

game. G.L. c. 23K, § 2 

 

@MASSGAMINGCOMM 3 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION 

All  
Gaming Devices or  
Gaming Equipment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Slot 
Machines 

112



ELECTRONIC TABLE GAME 

Not defined in G.L. c. 23K 

Proposed 205 CMR 143.09(2): 

An electronic table game shall be considered a slot machine in accordance with 

M.G.L. c. 23K, § 2 unless the simulation requires the intervention of a gaming 

employee prior to the final determination of winnings. 

 

 

@MASSGAMINGCOMM 4 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION 

113



GAMING POSITION 

"Gaming position'', a designated seat or standing position where a patron of a 

gaming establishment can play a game. G.L. c. 23K, § 2 

@MASSGAMINGCOMM 5 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION 

Traditional Slot Machine Electronic Table Game 

1 Device 
1 Player 
1 Gaming Position 

1 Device 
10 Players 
10 Gaming Positions 

1 Device 
5 Players 
5 Gaming Positions 

114



WHAT IS A SLOT MACHINE? 

@MASSGAMINGCOMM 6 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION 

=      1 Slot Machine 

        10 Slot Machines? 
=                 or 
          1 Slot Machine? 

115



POSSIBLE IMPLICATIONS 

@MASSGAMINGCOMM 7 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION 

Definition 1:                1 Gaming Position = 1 Slot Machine 
Definition 2:                        1 Table Game = 1 Slot Machine 

 Total         1,130 devices       1,250 positions            1,250        1,130 

12 devices 
 

8 devices 
 

1,110 devices 

Definition 1: 

Device     QTY Installed         Gaming Positions        Slot Machines 

   60 = 
 

   80 = 
 

1,110 = 

Definition 2: 

   60              12 
 

   80                8 
 

1,110         1,110 

* Slots parlor can install more devices with definition 2 

5 

Positions  

per Device 
x 

12 

Devices 

10 

Positions  

per Device 
x 

8 

Devices 

1 

Position  

per Device 
x 

1,110 

Devices 

116



POSSIBLE ALTERNATIVES 

• Sliding Scale 

• Table Game with 1-5 Positions = 1 Slot Machine 
• Table Game with 6-10 Positions = 2 Slot Machines 
• Table Game with 11-15 Positions = 3 Slot Machines 

 
• Cap on Gaming Positions 

• 1 Table Game = 1 Slot Machine 
• Keep legislative cap of 1,250 on number of slot machines 
• Create regulatory cap of 1,350 on number of gaming positions 

 

• Pre-Category 1 Period 

• Before first Category 1 Casino Opens  1 Table Game = 1 Slot Machine 
• After first Category 1 Casino Opens  Create regulatory cap of 1,250 positions 

 

@MASSGAMINGCOMM 8 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION 

117



PENN NATIONAL 
G A M I N G, I N C. 

Stephen Crosby, Chairman 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
84 State Street, 1 o•h Floor 
Boston, MA 021 09 

Re: 205 CMR 143.01(3) 

Dear Chairman Crosby, 

May 22,2014 

On behalf of Penn National Gaming, Inc. (Penn), I am wntmg to recommend a 
modification to proposed regulation 205 CMR 143.01(3). The proposed modification would 
provide that each designated seat or standing position at an electronic table game is a "gaming 
position" but that each such electronic table game constitutes only one slot machine under ch. 
23K, § 2. We believe that the proposed regulation is consistent with the statutory scheme and 
has the benefit of increasing the daily taxes paid by the category 2 licensee to the 
Commonwealth under § 55 of ch. 23K while, at the same time, increasing proportionally the 
share of the annual fees paid by the category 2 licensee under § 56 of ch. 23K. Our proposed 
modification (with new language italicized) is as follows: 

205 CMR 143.01(3) "For purposes of M.G.L. c.23k and 205 CMR each gaming 
position, as defined by M.G.L. c.23K, § 2, at a slot machine shall be considered a 
separate slot machine, except for gaming positions at electronic table games. For 
the purposes of MG.L c.23K, § 56, each designated seat or standing position 
where a patron of a gaming establishment can play a multiplayer electronic table 
game will constitute a gaming position. " (Additional language italicized) 

Statutory and Regulatory Background: 

Section 2 of ch. 23K defines a "gaming position" as a designated seat or standing position 
where a patron of a gaming establishment can play a game. See M.G.L c.23K, §2. "Slot 
machine" is defined as "a mechanical, electrical or other device, contrivance or machine which, 
upon insertion of a coin, token or similar object therein, or upon payment of any consideration 
whatsoever, is available to play or operate, the play or operation of which, whether by reason of 
the skill of the operator or application of the element of chance, or both, may deliver or entitle 
the individual playing or operating the machine to receive cash, or tokens to be exchanged for 
cash, or to receive merchandise or any other thing of value, whether the payoff is made 
automatically from the machine or in any other manner, except that the cash equivalent value of 
any merchandise or other thing of value shall not be included in determining the payout 
percentage of a slot machine." /d. 

118



Draft regulation 205 CMR 143 provides that "an electronic table game shall be 
considered a slot machine in accordance with M.G.L. c. 23K, § 2 unless the simulation requires 
the intervention of a gaming employee prior to the final determination of winnings." Jd. at 
143.09 (2). The draft regulation further provides that "for purposes of M.G.L. c.23K and 205 
CMR each gaming position, as defined by M.G.L. c.23k, § 2, at a slot machine shall be 
considered a separate slot machine." 205 CMR 143.01(3). 

Penn suggests the revision to 205 CMR 143 based on the following factors: 

I. The Proposed Regulatory Revision Falls within MGC's Regulatory Authoritv 

Under the proposed modification, each electronic table game would be considered an 
individual slot machine for the purposes of M.G.L. c. 23k, § 2k's limit of 1,250 slot machines 
and each designated seat or standing position where a patron of a gaming establishment can play 
an electronic table game would be considered a separate "gaming position" for the purposes of 
the annual fees assessed under § 56. The proposed modification would allow Penn to weigh the 
cost of the increase in its proportional share of annual assessments under § 56 against the 
increased revenue that would result from adding gaming positions, and to add an appropriate 
number of gaming positions in accordance with that economic calculation. This also would have 
the effect of increasing the daily taxes paid to the Commonwealth under § 55, which imposes 
taxes on the licensee totaling 49% of its gross gaming revenue. M.G.L. c.23k, §55 (b) and (c). 
Because Chapter 23k does not impose a cap on the number of gaming positions, the proposed 
modification is firmly within the Commission's regulatory discretion. See M.G.L. c.23k, §2 
(limiting the Category 2 licensee to "1,250 slot machines," with no reference to "gaming 
positions"). Adopting Penn's proposed definition also will allow the Commission to increase the 
daily tax revenue paid to the Commonwealth under§ 55, while maintaining the statutory number 
of slot machines noted in M.G.L. c. 23k § 2. 

2. The PrQposed Modification is Consistent with the Statutozy Definition of"Slot Machi_ne" 

The proposed modification would recognize that electronic tables are "slot machines" under 
§ 2, but also would clarify that each gaming position at an individual slot machine does not count 
as a separate slot machine for purposes of calculating the total number slot machines allowed 
category 2 licensees. We believe that if the legislature had intended§ 2 to limit the total number 
of gaming positions (rather than the number of slot machines), it would have expressly said so. 
In § 56, for example~ the legislature required a financial assessment based on the number of 
gaming positions in an establishment, not the number of slot machines or tables. Had it intended 
§ 2 to govern the number of gaming positions, it easily could have done so by making explicit 
reference to the same term, just as it did in § 56. See Commonwealth v. Galvin, 388 Mass. 326, 
330, 446 N.E.2d 391 (1983) ("[W]here the Legislature has employed specific language in one 
paragraph, but not in another, the language should not be implied where it is not present."); 
Alliance to Protect Nantucket Sound, Inc. v. Dep't of Pub. Utilities, 461 Mass. 166, 182-83 
(2011) ("[W]e have given agencies broad discretion to interpret statutes that they enforce, 
lending 'substantial deference' to their interpretations.") (citing City Council of Agawam v. 
Energy Facilities Siting Bd .• 43 7 Mass. 821, 828, 776 N .E.2d 1002, 1007 (2002)).1 The 

1 The reference in§ 2's definition of the term "slot machine" to ''the individual playing or operating" the game 
simply expresses the requirement that the machine pay something of value to a player and should not be construed to 
silently impose a limit on gaming positions. See M.G.L. c.4. § 6 (' ~Words. importing the singular number may 

119



proposed modification to the regulation thus is well within the Commission's authority and 
consistent with the language and legislative intent behind M.G.L. c.23k, § 2. 

3. The Proposed Modification is Consistent with Other Jurisdictions 

Other jurisdictions have adopted specific provisions differentiating electronic table games 
for purposes of gaming positions or game counts. Illinois Administrative code defines the term 
gaming position for the purposes of adhering to the 1,200 gaming position limit dictated by 230 
ILCS 1 0/7(h). Specifically, EGOs are counted as 9/1 Os of a position. See Illinois Administrative 
Code 86 3000.606.(a) ("Positions for games utilizing Electronic Gaming Devices will be 
determined as 90 percent of the total number of devices available for play.") New Mexico state 
regulations also differentiate electronic table games from standard slot machines by including a 
proportional representation metric. Specifically, multi-station games shall not comprise more 
than three (3) percent of the total possible allowed gaming machines on the gaming floor and for 
game count purposes, each multi-station game having up to five (5) player terminals shall count 
as one (1) gaming machine, each multi-station game having between six (6) and ten (10) player 
terminals shall count as two (2) gaming machines and each multi-station game having between 
eleven (11) and fifteen (15) gaming machines shall count as three (3) gaming machines. 
15.1.1 0.24(0)( 4) NMAC. Penn contends that the suggested revision adheres to Massachusetts 
statute while following gaming position definitions found in other jurisdictions. 

Based on the discussion above, Penn proposes that the Commission revise 205 CMR 143 
to provide that each electronic table game constitutes a single slot machine for the purposes of 
M.G.L. c.23k, § 2, with each designated seat or standing position at an electronic table game 
constituting a "gaming position" for the purposes of M.G.L c.23K, § 56. This modification, 
which is well within the Commission's regulatory authority, will permit Penn to add an 
appropriate number of gaming positions for electronic table games, thus increasing the daily tax 
revenue that is paid to the Commonwealth in proportion to Penn's gross gaming revenue. 
Finally, if approved, Penn expects to have approximately I 0-15 electronic table games at 
Plainridge Park Casino. 

Vice P sident Regulatory Affairs & 
Chief Compliance Officer 

extend and be applied to several persons or things, words importing the plural number may include the singular ... 
. ")I; see also Alliance, 461 Mass. at 183 (deferring to agency's determination that statute requiring solicitation of 
proposals (plural) permitted solicitation of a single proposal); Comm'r of Corporations & Taxation v. Thayer, 
Bradley Co., 291 Mass. 197, 201, 197 N.E. 47, 49 (1935)(permittingjoinder of actions for taxes assessed for two 
separate years where statute referred to " tax or excise" in its singular form). 

120



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  
 

 
205 CMR 134.00:  LICENSING AND REGISTRATION OF EMPLOYEES, VENDORS, JUNKET 

ENTERPRISES AND REPRESENTATIVES, AND LABOR ORGANIZATIONS 

 
Section 

 
134.01:   Key Gaming Employee Licensees 

134.02:   Gaming Employee Licensees 

134.03:   Gaming Service Employees 

134.04:   Vendors 

134.05:   Labor Organizations 

(134.06:   Junket Enterprises and Junket Representatives:  Reserved) 

134.07:   Forms 

134.08:   Submission of Application 

134.09:   Investigation, Determination, and Appeals for Gaming Establishment Employees and Vendors 

134.10:   Affirmative License Standards for the Licensing of Employees and Vendors of the Gaming 

Establishment  

134.11:  Affirmative Registration Standards for the Registration of Employees and Vendors of the Gaming 

Establishment and Labor Organizations 

134.12:   Temporary Licenses 

134.13:   Fingerprinting 

134.14:   Identification 

134.15:   Fees 

134.16:   Term of Licenses 

134.17:   Renewals 

134.18:   Duties of Applicants and Licensees 

134.19:   Disciplinary Action 

 
134.01:   Key Gaming Employee Licensees 

 
No individual shall be employed by or perform services for a gaming licensee as a key 

gaming employee, as defined by M.G.L. c. 23K, § 2, unless the individual has been licensed in 

accordance with M.G.L. c. 23K, §30 and 205 CMR 134.00. There shall be two categories of key 

gaming employee licensees: key gaming employee- executive and key gaming employee- 

standard. 

 
(1)   An individual  holding one of the following positions at a gaming establishment, and any 

person in a similar or equivalent position, regardless of job title, whose employment relates to 

gaming shall be designated as a key gaming employee- executive: 

(a)  Assistant General Manager; 

(b)   Chief Internal Audit Officer; 

(c)  Gaming Manager; 

(d)   Chief Financial Officer; 

(e)  Chief of Security; 

(f)  General Manager; 

(g)   Chief Surveillance Officer; 

(h)   Chief Compliance Officer; 

(i)   Principal executive Officer; 

(j)   Principal operating Officer; 

(k)   Principal accounting Officer; 

(l)   Chief Information Officer; 

Formatted: Height:  11"

121



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.01:   continued 

 

(m) Other executive level employees who are not identified as a key gaming employee- 

standard in accordance with 205 CMR 134.01(2) as determined by the commission. 

 
(2)   An individual  holding one of the following positions at a gaming establishment, and any 

person in a similar or equivalent position, regardless of job title, whose employment relates 

directly to a gaming establishment shall be designated as a key gaming employee- standard: 

(a)  Controller; 

(b)   Electronic gaming device or slot machines manager; 

(c)  Human resources manager; 

(d)   Information technology manager; 

(e)   Pit boss; 

(f) Shift  supervisor of table games, of a slot department, credit department, security, 

surveillance, accounting department, cage, or player development; 

(g)   Credit manager; 

(h)   Cage manager; 

(i)   Hotel Manager; 

(j)   Entertainment Director; 

(k)   Food & Beverage Manager; 

(l)    Other  managerial employees who are not identified as a key gaming employee- 

executive in accordance with 205 CMR 134.01(1), but who are empowered to make 

discretionary decisions which impact gaming establishment operations, or as determined by 

the commission. 

 
(3)    Any individual  who is a qualifier of a gaming licensee but who does not  perform 

any of the duties of the positions identified in 205 CMR 134.01(1)(a) or (b) does not have to 

become licensed as a key gaming employee. Such individual does have to be approved as a 

qualifier and issued a positive determination of suitability in accordance with 205 CMR 

111.00:   Phase 1 Application Requirements, 115.00:  Phase 1 Suitability Determination, 

Standards and Procedures, and 

116.00:  Persons Required to Be Licensed or Qualified.  An individual who has been issued a 

positive determination of suitability in accordance with 205 CMR 111.00: Phase 1 Application 

Requirements and who will be performing the responsibilities requiring licensure as a key 

gaming employee shall apply for licensure in accordance with 205 CMR 134.08(2) subject to the 

term limitation of 205 CMR 134.16(4). 

 
134.02:   Gaming Employee Licensees 

 
No individual shall be employed by or perform services for a gaming licensee as a gaming 

employee, as defined by M.G.L. c. 23K, § 2, unless the individual has been licensed in 

accordance with M.G.L. c. 23K, § 30 and 205 CMR 134.00. An individual holding one of the 

following positions at a gaming establishment, and any person in a similar or equivalent position, 

regardless of job title, whose employment relates directly to a gaming establishment shall be 

designated as a gaming employee: 

(a)   Boxpersons; 

(b)   Cashiers; 

(c)   Change personnel; 

(d)   Clerks; 

(e)   Count room personnel; 

(f)   Data processing personnel; 

(g)   Dealers and croupiers; 

122



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.02:   continued 

 

(h)   Floorpersons; 

(i)   Gaming Hosts; 

(j)  Internal audit and accounting personnel whose duties include reviewing, verifying, and 

recording gaming revenue entries, the processing or control of active accounting documents 

related to gaming activity, or that have access to active accounting documents related to 

gaming activity; 

(k) An  individual who is directly connected to the operation or maintenance of a slot 

machine or game taking place in a gaming establishment (whether employed by the gaming 

licensee or a vendor licensed in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00); 

(l) Personnel authorized to extend complimentary services, including employees performing 

functions similar to those performed by a junket representative; 

(m) Junket representative employed by the gaming licensee or affiliate of the gaming license 

or a junket enterprise licensed as a gaming vendor in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00; 

(n)   Personnel authorized to issue credit; 

(o)  Personnel authorized to issue promotional play including persons who identify patrons 

or groups of patrons who shall receive complimentaries based on actual patron play, 

authorize such complimentaries, or determine the amount of such complimentaries; 

(p)   Personnel with security administrator access to a slot machine tracking system; 

(q) Security personnel, including guards and game observers, or an employee with 

knowledge of security procedures of the gaming establishment; 

(r)    Surveillance personnel, including surveillance equipment maintenance and repair 

technicians (whether employed by the gaming licensee or a vendor licensed in accordance 

with 205 CMR 134.00); 

(s)  Any employee who conducts or participates in the conduct of gaming, who participates 

in the transfer or handling of chips, tokens or money, or who participates in audit or 

accounting functions; 

(t)   Any employee whose has access to a restricted area of a gaming establishment; 

(u)   A person who supervises a person required to be licensed as a gaming employee in 

accordance with 205 CMR 134.02; 

(v)    An employee of a gaming establishment whom the Bureau deems necessary to be 

licensed to ensure compliance with the M.G.L. c. 23K and 205 CMR and to protect the 

public and ensure the credibility and integrity of gaming in the Commonwealth. 

 
134.03:   Gaming Service Employees 

 
An  individual employed  in a gaming establishment who is not classified as a key gaming 

employee in accordance with 205 CMR 134.01, or a gaming employee in accordance with 

205 CMR 134.02, shall be designated as a gaming service employee and shall register in 

accordance with 205 CMR 134.09 prior to engaging in the provision of employment services. 

An individual employed by a vendor of a gaming establishment for work in a gaming 

establishment shall be considered a gaming service employee unless otherwise specified in 

205 CMR 134.02. 

 
134.04:   Vendors 

 
No person shall conduct business with a gaming licensee as a vendor to a gaming establish 

ment unless such person has been licensed as a gaming vendor, as defined by M.G.L. c. 23K, § 2, 

or registered as a non-gaming vendor, as defined by M.G.L. c. 23K, § 2, in accordance with 

205 CMR 134.00. A person shall be considered to be conducting business upon commencement 

of performance of a contract or provision of a good or service. 

123



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.04:   continued 

 

A subcontractor to a vendor shall not be required to obtain licensure or registration under 

205 CMR 134.00.  For purposes of 205 CMR 134.00 a subcontractor shall be considered a 

person that contracts with a licensed or registered vendor to provide goods or services necessary 

to fulfill the licensed or registered vendor's contract with a gaming licensee.  As part of the 

application process, vendors shall be required to identify all of its known or anticipated 

subcontractors and shall have a continuing duty to update the Bureau relative to t h e  

i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  o f  any new subcontractors. by submission of the Subcontractor 

Identification Form as provided in 205 CMR 

134.07(11).The Bureau may, at its discretion, require the submission of a d d i t i o n a l  

i n f o r m a t i o n  a n d  d o c u m e n t s ,  i n c l u d i n g  b u t  n o t  l i m i t e d  t o  t h e  

S u b c o n t r a c t o r  I n f o r m a t i o n  F o r m  a s  p r o v i d e d  i n  2 0 5  C M R  

1 3 4 . 0 7 ( 1 1 ) .   

 
(1)   Gaming Vendors. 

(a)   Gaming Vendors- Primary. A person who conducts business with a gaming applicant 

or gaming licensee on a regular or continuing basis for provision of goods or services which 

directly relates to gaming, as defined by M.G.L. c. 23K, § 2, including, but not limited to a 

person who does any of the following, shall be designated as a gaming vendor-primary: 

1.   Manufactures, sells, leases, supplies, or distributes devices, machines, equipment 

(except gaming table layouts), accessories, or items that meet at least one of the 

following conditions: 

a.   are designed for use in a gaming area as defined by M.G.L. c. 23K, § 2; 

b.   are designed for use in a simulcast wagering area; 

c.   are  used in connection with a game in the gaming area; 

d.  have the capacity to affect the calculation, storage, collection, electronic security, 

or control of the gaming revenues from a gaming establishment. 

2.  provides maintenance services or repairs gaming or simulcast wagering equipment, 

including slot machines; 

3.   acts as a junket enterprise; or 

4.   provides items or services that the Commission has determined are used in or are 

incidental to gaming or to an activity of a gaming facility. 

Exception.   Any person, by submission of a written petition, may request a 

determination from the commission that the person providing goods or services 

deemed by the Bureau to meet a description contained in 205 CMR 134.04(1)(a) need 

not be licensed as a Gaming Vendor-primary on the grounds that they are not 

providing services on a regular or continuing basis or that they do not directly relate 

to gaming. 

(b)    Gaming Vendors- Secondary.  Any person who regularly conducts over $250,000 in 

gross sales with any one gaming licensee within a 12 month period or a person who conducts 

over $100,000 in gross sales with any one gaming licensee within a three month period, and 

who does not otherwise qualify for designation as a Gaming Vendor-primary in accordance 

with 205 CMR 134.04(1)(a)1., may be designated a Gaming Vendor-secondary by the 

Commission regardless of the type of goods or services being provided.  This designation 

may be made either by virtue of submission of a Business Entity Disclosure Form- Gaming 

Vendor-secondary application by the vendor in anticipation of meeting the monetary 

threshold, or in accordance with 205 CMR 134.04(3). 

 
(2)  Non-gaming Vendors. A person who offers to a gaming establishment or gaming licensee 

goods or services which are not directly related to gaming, as defined by M.G.L. c. 23K, § 2, 

including, but not limited to any of the following, shall be designated as a non-gaming vendor: 

Formatted: Right:  0.03", Space Before:  0.1
pt, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.01 li

124



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.04:   continued 

 

(1)  construction company; 

(2)   vending machine provider; 

(3)   linen supplier; 

(4)   garbage handler; 

(5)  maintenance company; 

(6)  limousine service company; 

(7) food purveyor; 

(8)   supplier of alcoholic beverages; 

(9)   a person that sells, distributes, tests, or repairs antique slot machines as described in 

M.G.L. c. 271, § 5A; 

(10)  suppliers of gaming table layouts. 

 
(3)   The Division of Licensing shall determine upon review of the agreement submitted in 

accordance with 205 CMR whether a registered non-gaming vendor has met the conditions 

provided in 205 CMR 134.04(1)(b). If the Division of Licensing determines that the non-gaming 

vendor registrant has met the threshold it shall forward notice of such to the vendor of its 

obligation to submit an application for licensure as a gaming vendor-secondary. Within 45 days 

of service of the notice, the registrant shall either submit a completed Business Entity Disclosure 

Form- Gaming Vendor- Secondary as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(7) for licensure as a gaming 

vendor-secondary, discontinue providing the goods or services it is contracted to provide, file 

for an exemption in accordance with 205 CMR 134.04(6), or file a written request to the 

Division of Licensing for reconsideration from the determination requiring filing of an 

application for licensure as a gaming vendor-secondary on the grounds that they are not 

providing goods or services on a regular or continuing basis. 

 
(4)   Gaming Vendor Qualifier. 

(a) The following persons shall be  designated as a gaming vendor qualifier and must 

establish their qualifications for licensure in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09 and 134.10: 

1.   If the gaming vendor applicant is a sole proprietor:  The owner. 

2.   If the gaming vendor applicant is a corporation: 

a.   Each officer; 

b.    Each inside director and those outside directors serving on the audit or 

compliance committees; 

c.  Any person owning more than 5% of the common stock of a company applying 

for licensure as a gaming vendor as provided by 205 CMR 134.04(1)(a), or a holding, 

intermediary or subsidiary company of such company; 

d.    Any person who will act as a sales representative or regularly engage in the 

solicitation of business from a licensed gaming establishment; 

e.    In the judgment of the Bureau any person with significant and substantial 

responsibility for the applicant's business in the Commonwealth. 

3.   If the applicant is a limited liability corporation: 

a.   Each Member; 

b.  Each transferee of a Member's interest; 

c.   Each Manager; 

d.  In the judgment of the Bureau any person with significant and substantial respon 

sibility for the applicant's business in the Commonwealth. 

4.   If the applicant is a limited partnership: 

a.   Each General Partner; 

b.   Each Limited Partner; 

c.  In the judgment of the Bureau any person with significant and substantial respon 

125



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.04:   continued 

 

sibility for the applicant's business in the Commonwealth. 

5.   If the applicant is a partnership: 

a. Each Partner; 

b. In the judgment of the Bureau any person with significant and substantial 

responsibility for the applicant's business in the Commonwealth. 

(b)  In all cases, any person who, in the opinion of the commission or Bureau, can exercise 

control or provide direction to a gaming vendor or applicant for a gaming vendor license or 

holding, intermediary or subsidiary companies thereof may be designated a Gaming Vendor 

qualifier. 

(c)    Other Qualifiers.  The commission or Bureau may, at its  discretion, require other 

persons that have a business association of any kind with the applicant for a gaming vendor 

license to be licensed as a gaming vendor qualifier. These  persons include, but are not 

limited to an affiliate or holding, intermediary or subsidiary companies of the applicant for 

a gaming vendor license. 

(d)   An applicant may appeal any determination made by the Bureau in accordance with 

205 CMR 134.04(4) to the commission by filing a petition on a form prescribed by the 

commission.  The commission shall decide the appeal at a public hearing on the matter at 

which it may allow representatives of the petitioner and Bureau to testify. 

 
(5)  Waiver. Upon written petition, the commission may waive the requirement to be licensed 

as a gaming vendor qualifier for: 

(a)  institutional investors holding up to 15% of the stock of the gaming vendor or applicant 

for a gaming vendor license, or holding, intermediary or subsidiary company thereof , upon 

a showing by the person seeking the waiver that  it purchased the securities for investment 

purposes only and does not have any intention to influence or affect the affairs or operations 

of the gaming vendor or applicant for a gaming vendor license or a holding, intermediary or 

subsidiary company thereof. Provided, however, any institutional investor granted a waiver 

which subsequently determines to influence or affect the affairs or operations of the gaming 

vendor or applicant for a gaming vendor license, or a holding, intermediary thereor  shall 

provide not less than 30 days' notice to the commission of such intent and shall file an 

application and be subject to the licensing requirements of 205 CMR 134.00 before taking 

any action that may influence or affect the affairs of the  gaming vendor or applicant for a 

gaming vendor license or a holding, intermediary or subsidiary company.  Any  person 

holding over 15% of a gaming vendor or applicant for a gaming vendor license, or a holding, 

intermediary or subsidiary company thereof , shall be required to apply for a license before 

doing business in the Commonwealth; or 

(b)    Any person who, in the opinion of the Bureau or the commission, cannot exercise 

control or provide direction to a gaming vendor or applicant for a gaming vendor license or 

a holding, intermediary or subsidiary company thereof.  Provided, however, a person who 

is not an institutional investor and who holds more than 5% of the common stock of a 

company, or holding, intermediary or subsidiary company of such a company may not 

petition for waiver in accordance with 205 CMR 134.04(5)(b). 

 
(6)    Exemptions.  For purposes of 205 CMR 134.04 the following persons engaged in the 

following fields of commerce who provide goods or services to a gaming applicant or gaming 

licensee, and that are not otherwise required to be licensed as a key gaming employee, gaming 

employee, or gaming service employee, shall not be deemed to be conducting business for 

purposes of M.G.L. c. 23K, § 31 and accordingly shall not be required to obtain licensure or 

registration as a vendor: 

126



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.04:   continued 

 
(a)   insurance companies and insurance agencies; 

(b)  television, radio, newspaper, internet or other similar media outlets used for advertising 

purposes; 

(c)  transactions with a governmental entity; 

(d)   professional legal, accounting, and financial services; 

(e)   physicians; 

(f) labor organizations, unions, or affiliates registered in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00; 

(g)   utility companies; 

(h)   telecommunications companies; 

(i) training seminars, publication subscriptions, conference registration or membership dues 

for professional associations intended to directly contribute to the work performance or 

professional development of an employee; 

(j)   non-profit charitable corporations or organizations, provided that no consideration is 

received for the contribution; 

(k)  court order or stipulation of settlement or for settlement of guest losses or guest refunds 

(l)   payments for freight charges to freight transporters select by the vendor for delivering 

goods; 

(m)   professional entertainers and/or celebrity appearances; 

(n)    any other person that, by submission of a written petition, can demonstrate to the 

commission that registration as a non-gaming vendor is not necessary to protect the public 

interest. 

 
134.05:   Labor Organizations 

 
(1) Each labor organization, union or affiliate seeking to represent employees who are employed 

at a gaming establishment shall register with the Commission in accordance with 205 CMR 

134.05. 

 
(2)  Within 30 days of the date on which it begins organizing activities directed at the employees 

who are employed in a gaming establishment, a labor organization, union or affiliate shall file 

with the Bureau a labor organization registration statement in accordance with 205 CMR 134.08. 

Organizing activities shall include, without limitation, soliciting membership by means of any 

direct personal contact, or any public notices such as the posting or distribution of fliers, posters 

or advertisements. 

 
(3)  Each officer, agent or principal employee of the labor organization, union or affiliate shall 

file a Labor Organization Individual Disclosure Form in accordance with 205 CMR 134.08 at 

the time the pertinent labor organization, union or affiliate registers or should register, or within 

30 days of the date on which the individual is elected, appointed or hired, whichever is later, or 

within such additional time as the Bureau may, upon a showing of good cause, permit. 

 
(4)  Notwithstanding 205 CMR 134.05 a Labor Organization Individual Disclosure Form need 

not be filed by an officer, agent or principal employee of a national or international labor 

organization who exercises no authority, discretion or influence over the operation of such labor 

organization with regard to any employment matter relating to employees who are employed in 

a Massachusetts gaming establishment provided that the Bureau may direct such officer to file 

such form or to provide any other information in the same manner and to the same extent as may 

be required of any other officer of a labor organization which is required to register. 

 
 

127



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.05:   continued 

 
(5)    Neither a labor organization, union, or affiliate, nor its officers who are not otherwise 

licensed or registered as a key gaming employee, gaming employee, gaming service employee, 

gaming vendor, gaming vendor qualifier, or non-gaming vendor, may hold any financial interest 

in a gaming establishment whose employees are represented by the labor organization, union, 

or affiliate. 

 
(134.06:   Junket Enterprises and Junket Representatives:  Reserved) 

 
134.07:   Forms 

 
(1)    Multi-jurisdictional Personal History Disclosure Form for Key Gaming Employees- 

Executive and Gaming Vendor Qualifiers. The Multi-jurisdictional Personal History Disclosure 

Form For Key Gaming Employees- Executive and Gaming Vendor Qualifiers shall contain the 

following information: 

(a)  Name, including maiden name and any aliases or nicknames and applicable dates of use; 

(b)   Date of birth; 

(c)  Physical description; 

(d)  Current address and residence history; 

(e)  Social Security Number, which information is voluntarily provided in accordance with 

5 U.S.C. § 552a; 

(f)   Citizenship and, if applicable, information regarding resident alien status, including 

information regarding passports; 

(g)   Marital history, spouse, dependents and other family data; 

(h) The gaming licensee or qualifier, gaming vendor licensee or qualifier or holding 

company, as applicable, with which the qualifier is affiliated, and the nature of the qualifier's 

position with or interest in such entity; 

(i)   Telephone number at the current place of employment, and home number; 

(j)   Email address; 

(k)  Employment history of the qualifier and qualifier's immediate family; 

(l)  Education and training; 

(m)   Record of military service; 

(n)    Government positions and offices presently or previously held, and the offices, 

trusteeships, directorships or fiduciary positions presently or previously held with any 

business entity; 

(o)  Trusteeships or other fiduciary positions held by the qualifier and the qualifier's spouse, 

and any denial or suspension of, or removal from, such positions; 

(p)   Current memberships in any social, labor or fraternal union, club or organization; 

(q)  Licenses and other approvals held by or applied for by the qualifier or, where specified, 

the qualifier's spouse, in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any other jurisdiction, as 

follows: 

1.   Any professional or occupational license held by or applied for the by the qualifier 

or the qualifier's spouse; 

2. Motor vehicle registrations and operator licenses held by or applied for the by the 

qualifier or the qualifier's spouse, and any revocation or suspension thereof; 

3.  Possession or ownership of any pistol or firearm, or any application for any firearm 

permit, firearm dealer's license, or permit to carry a pistol or firearm; 

4.   Any license, permit, approval or registration required to participate in any lawful 

gambling operation in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any jurisdiction held by 

or applied for by the qualifier; and 

5.  Any denial, suspension or revocation by a government agency of a license, permit or 

128



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.07:   continued 

 

certification held by or applied for by the qualifier or the qualifier's spouse, or any entity 

in which the qualifier or the qualifier's spouse was a director, officer, partner or any 

owner of a 5% or greater interest. 

(r)   Any interest in or employment presently or previously held by the qualifier with any 

entity which has applied for a permit, license, certificate or qualification in connection with 

any lawful gambling or alcoholic beverage operation in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

or any other jurisdiction; and any current employment or other association by the qualifier's 

family with the gambling or alcoholic beverage industries in the Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts or any other jurisdiction; 

(s)   Civil, criminal and investigatory proceedings in any jurisdiction, as follows: 

1.  Any arrest, indictment, charge, or conviction of the applicant; 

2.  Any instance where the applicant has been named as a co-conspirator in a criminal 

proceeding or held as a material witness; 

3.  Any appearance before, investigation by or request to take a polygraph examination 

by any governmental agency, court, committee, grand jury or investigatory body, and any 

refusal to comply with a request to do so; 

4. Any pardons, dismissals, suspensions or deferrals of any criminal investigation, 

prosecution, or conviction; 

5.   Lawsuits to which the applicant was or is a party; 
6.    Any citation or charge for a violation of a statute, regulation or code or any 
jurisdiction, other than a criminal disorderly persons, petty disorderly persons or motor 

vehicle violation; and 
7. Any use, distribution, or possession of any narcotic, hallucinogenic, drug, barbiturate, 
amphetamine or other substance listed in M.G.L. c. 94C other than pursuant to a valid 

prescription issued by a licensed physician. 
(t)   Any exclusion or barring from any casino, gaming establishment or gambling/gaming 
related entity in any jurisdiction; 
(u)   Financial data, as follows: 

1.  All assets and liabilities of the applicant, and the applicant's spouse and dependent 

children as indicated on the net worth statement and supporting schedules in a format 
prescribed by the commission, including cash, bank accounts, notes payable and 
receivable, real estate and income taxes payable, loans, accounts payable and any other 

indebtedness, contingent liabilities, securities, real estate interests, real estate mortgages 
and liens, life insurance, pension funds, vehicles and other assets; 
2.   Bank accounts, including any right of ownership in, control over or interest in any 

foreign bank account, and safe deposit boxes; 
3.   Real estate interests held by the applicant or the applicant's spouse or dependent 
children; 
4.   Businesses owned; 
5.   Copies of federal tax returns and related information; 

6.    Judgments or petitions for bankruptcy, insolvency or liquidation concerning the 
qualifier or any business entity in which the qualifier held a 5% or greater interest, other 

than a publicly traded corporation, or in which the qualifier served as an officer or 
director; 
7.  Any business entity in which the qualifier was an owner, director or officer which has 

been placed under some form of governmental administration or monitoring; 
8.    Any garnishment or attachment of wages, charging order or voluntary wage 
execution, including the amount, court, nature of the obligation and the holder of the 

obligation; 
9.   Any repossessions of real or personal property; 
10.   Any guarantees, co-signatures or insuring of payments of financial obligations of  

129



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.07:   continued 

 

any persons or business entities; 
11.   Status as executor, administrator or fiduciary of any estate; 
12.  Life insurance policies on the applicant's life which name someone other than the 

applicant's family as a beneficiary; 
13.   Positions held, assets held, or interest received in any estate or trust; 
14.   Whether the  applicant has ever been bonded for any purpose or been denied any 

type of bond, including the nature of the bond and if applicable, the reason for denial; 
15.  Insurance claims in excess of $100,000.00 by the applicant or the applicant's spouse 
or dependent children; 
16.   Referral or finder's fees in excess of $10,000.00; 
17.   Loans in excess of $10,000.00 made or received by the applicant, the applicant's 

spouse or dependent children; 
18.   Gifts in excess of $10,000.00 given or received by the applicant or the applicant's 
immediate family; 
19.   Brokerage or margin accounts with any securities or commodities dealer; 
20.   Currency exchanges in an amount greater than $10,000.00; 

21.  Information regarding any instance where the applicant or any entity in which the 
applicant was a director, officer or holder of a 5% or greater interest has traded in foreign 

currencies or in a foreign commodities exchange, sold or purchased discounted 
promissory notes or other commercial paper, or been a party to any leasing arrangements 
in excess of $50,000.00; and 

22.    Information regarding any ownership interest or financial investment by the 
applicant in any entity which holds or is an applicant for a license issued by the 
commission, or in any gambling venture which does not require licensure by the 

commission, including persons providing or reasonably anticipated to provide the 
applicant with support in the financing of such investment or interest; the extent and 
nature of the  applicant's involvement in the management and operation of the entity; 

whether the  applicant has or has agreed to assign, pledge or hypothecate such interest 
or investment, the nature and terms of any such transaction and a copy of any such 
agreement. 

(v)   The name, address, occupation and phone number of persons who can attest to the 

qualifier's good character and reputation; 

(w)   A signed, dated Statement of Truth affidavit. 

 
(2) Massachusetts Supplement Form For Key Gaming Employees- Executive and Gaming 

Vendor  Qualifiers. The  Massachusetts  Supplement  Form  For  Key  Qualifiers  Gaming 

Employees- Executive and Gaming Vendor Qualifiers shall contain the following information: 

(a)  Name, including maiden name and any aliases or nicknames and applicable dates of use; 

(b)   Date of birth; 

(c)  Physical description; 

(d)   Current address, mailing and home, if different; 

(e)   Home, cell, and work telephone numbers; 

(f)  Social Security Number, which information is voluntarily provided in accordance with 

5 U.S.C. § 552a; 

(g)   Whether any civil judgments have been obtained against the applicant pertaining to 

antitrust or security regulation; 

(h)    The gaming license applicant or holding company, as applicable, with which the 

applicant is affiliated, and the nature of the  applicant's position with or interest in such 

entity; 

(i)      Citizenship  and,  if  applicable,  resident  alien  status,  including any employment 

authorization with expiration date; country of which the applicant is a citizen, place of birth, 

130



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.07:   continued 

 

 port of entry to the United States, and name and addresses of sponsor(s) upon the applicant's 

arrival; 

(j)  Whether during the last ten years any entity in which the applicant has been a director, 

officer, principal employee or a holder of 5% or more interest has: 

1.  Made or been charged with (either itself or through third parties acting for it) bribes 

or kickbacks to any government official, domestic or foreign, to obtain favorable 

treatment or to any company, employee or organization to obtain a competitive 

advantage; 

2.   Held a foreign bank account or has had authority to control disbursements from a 

foreign bank account; 

3.  Maintained a bank account or other account, whether domestic or foreign, which is 

not reflected on the books or records of the business or which is in a name other than the 

name of the business; 

4.  Donated, loaned or used funds or property for the use or benefit or in opposing any 

government, political party, candidate or committee either domestic or foreign; 

5. Compensated any of its directors, officers or employees for time and expenses 

incurred in performing services for the benefit of or in opposing any government or 

political party domestic or foreign; or 

6.     Made any loans, donations or other disbursement to its directors, officers or 

employees for the purpose of making political contributions or reimbursing such 

individuals for political contributions whether domestic or foreign; 

7. Copies of federal and foreign tax returns and related information for the last five 

years; 

8.   The name, address, occupation and phone number of persons who can attest to the 

qualifier's good character and reputation; 

9.  A signed, dated and notarized release authorization which shall direct all courts, law 

enforcement agencies, probation departments, military organizations, selective service 

boards, employers, education institutions, banks, financial and other institutions and all 

governmental agencies, federal, state and local, both foreign and domestic, to release any 

and all information pertaining to the qualifier as requested by the commission, the bureau 

or a contractor investigator; 

10.   A signed, dated  Statement of Truth; 

11.     A waiver of liability as to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and its 

instrumentalities and agents for any damages resulting from any disclosure and 

publication of information acquired during the license or investigation process; and 

12.  Consent to fingerprinting, photographing, supplying of handwriting exemplars, and 

any lawful inspection, search, or seizure of the applicant, licensee, or registrant while 

present in a gaming establishment, and/or their personal effects present in a gaming 

establishment conducted in accordance with 205 CMR. 

(3)  Key Gaming Employee- Standard Application Form. A Key Gaming Employee- Standard 

Application Form shall contain the following information: 

(a)  Name, including maiden name and any aliases or nicknames along with applicable dates 

of usage; 

(b)   Date and place of birth; 

(c)  Physical description; 

(d)   Current address and telephone number, and residence history for the past ten years; 

(e)  Social Security Number, which information is voluntarily provided in accordance with 

§ 7 of the Privacy Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552a; 

(f)     Citizenship and, if applicable, resident alien status, including any employment 

authorization and expiration date, country of which the applicant is a citizen, place of birth,  

131



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.07:   continued 

 

port of entry to the United States, and name and address of sponsor(s) upon the applicant's 

arrival; 

(g)   Reason for filing the Key Gaming Employee- Standard Application Form; 

(h)   Marital history and other family data; 

(i)  Employment history, including any gaming-related employment, for the past ten years; 

(j)  Education and training; 

(k)   Record of military service; 

(l)  Licenses and other approvals held by or applied for by the applicant or, where specified, 

the applicant's spouse, in  the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any other jurisdiction, 

including: 

1.   Any license, permit, approval or registration required to participate in any lawful 

gambling operation in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any jurisdiction; 

2.  Any denial, suspension or revocation by a government agency in the Commonwealth 

of Massachusetts or any other jurisdiction of a license, permit, approval or registration 

held by or applied for by the applicant or the applicant's spouse; and 

3.    Motor vehicle registrations and operator licenses held by or applied for by the 

applicant or the applicant's spouse, and any revocation or suspension thereof. 

(m)   Civil, criminal and investigatory proceedings in any jurisdictions, as follows: 

1.  Any arrest, indictment, charge, or conviction of the applicant; 

2.  Any appearance before, investigation by or request to take a polygraph examination 

by any governmental agency, court, committee, grand jury or investigatory body; 

3.   Lawsuits to which the applicant was or is a party in the past ten years; and 

4.  Whether any civil judgments have been obtained against the applicant pertaining to 

antitrust or security regulation. 

(n)   Financial data, as follows: 

1.   All assets and liabilities of the applicant, and the applicant's spouse and dependent 

children as indicated on the net worth statement and supporting schedules in a format 

prescribed by the Commission, including cash, bank accounts, notes payable and 

receivable, real estate and income taxes payable, loans, accounts payable, credit card debt 

and any other indebtedness, contingent liabilities, securities, real estate interests, real 

estate mortgages and liens, life insurance, pension funds, vehicles and other assets; 

2.   Bank accounts, including any right of ownership in, control over or interest in any 

foreign bank account during the last ten year period as well as with regard to safe deposit 

boxes; 

3.   Real estate interests held by the applicant or the applicant's spouse or dependent 

children in the past ten years regardless of whether such interest was held under a 

recorded or unrecorded instrument; 

4.   Any business in which the applicant has held an ownership interest for the past 20 

years; 

5.  Copies of federal and state tax returns and related information for the last five years; 

6.  Judgments or petitions for bankruptcy or insolvency concerning the applicant or any 

business entity in which the applicant held a 5% or greater interest, other than a publicly 

traded corporation, in the past 20 years or in which the applicant served as an officer or 

director; 

7.     Any garnishment or attachment of wages, charging order or voluntary wage 

execution, during the past ten-year period including the amount, court, nature of the 

obligation and the name and address holder of the obligation; 

8.    Positions held or interest received in any estate or trust during the last ten-year 

period; 

132



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.07:   continued 

 
9.  Insurance claims in excess of $100,000 by the applicant or the applicant's spouse or 

dependent children filed within the past ten-year period; 

10.  Loans in excess of $10,000 made or received by the applicant, the applicant's spouse 

or dependent children in the last ten-year period; 

11.  During the last five-year period, any gifts in excess of $10,000, either individually 

or in the aggregate, given or received, whether tangible or intangible, by the applicant or 

the applicant's immediate family in any one-year period; and 

12.    Referral or finder's fees in excess of $10,000 in the past ten years. 

(o)   The name, address, occupation and phone number of persons who can attest to the 

applicant's good character and reputation; 

(p)  Consent to fingerprinting, photographing, supplying of handwriting exemplars, and any 

lawful inspection, search, or seizure of the applicant, licensee, or registrant while present in 

a gaming establishment, and/or their personal effects present in a gaming establishment 

conducted in accordance with 205 CMR; 

(q)   A signed, dated and notarized release authorization which shall direct all courts, law 

enforcement agencies, probation departments, military organizations, selective service 

boards, employers, education institutions, banks, financial and other institutions and all 

governmental agencies, federal, state and local, both foreign and domestic, to release any and 

all information pertaining to the applicant as requested by the commission, the bureau or a 

contractor investigator; and 

(r)  A signed, dated  Statement of Truth. 

 
(4)  Gaming Employee License Form. The Gaming Employee License Form shall contain the 

following information: 

(a)   Name and address of the applicant; 

(b)  Detailed employment history; 

(c)  Education and training; 

(d)   Record of military service; 

(e)  Government positions and offices presently or previously held, and offices, trusteeships, 

directorships or fiduciary positions presently or previously held with any business entity; 

(f)  Licenses, registrations, permits, certification and other approvals held by or applied for 

in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts  or any other jurisdiction; 

(g)     Any denial, suspension or revocation by a governmental agency of a license, 

registration, permit or certification held by or applied for the applicant or any entity in which 

the applicant a director, officer, partner or an owner of a 5% or greater interest; 

(h)   Any interest in or employment presently or previously held by the applicant with an 

entity which has applied for a permit, license, certificate or qualification in connection with 

any lawful gambling or alcoholic beverage operation in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

or any other jurisdiction; 

(i)   Any arrest, indictment, charge, or conviction of the applicant; 

(j)  Civil litigation history where the applicant was or is a party; 

(k)  Gaming regulatory history; 

(l)  All governmental financial liens or judgments, including state tax liens, delinquent child 

support obligations, defaulted student loans, unemployment judgments, unpaid motor vehicle 

surcharges, welfare judgments, bankruptcy or insolvency findings, wage garnishments; 

(m)   Whether any civil judgments have been obtained against the applicant pertaining to 

antitrust or security regulation; 

(n)  Consent to fingerprinting, photographing, supplying of handwriting exemplars, and any 

lawful inspection, search, or seizure of the applicant, licensee, or registrant while present in 

a gaming establishment, and/or their personal effects present in a gaming establishment  

133



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.07:   continued 

 

conducted in accordance with 205 CMR; 

(o)   A signed, dated and notarized release authorization which shall direct all courts, law 

enforcement agencies, probation departments, military organizations, selective service 

boards, employers, education institutions, banks, financial and other institutions and all 

governmental agencies, federal, state and local, both foreign and domestic, to release any and 

all information pertaining to the applicant as requested by the commission, the bureau or a 

contractor investigator; and 

(p)   A signed, dated and notarized Statement of Truth. 

 
(5)  Gaming Service Employee Registration Form. A Gaming Service Employee Registration 

Form shall contain the following information: 

(a)   Name, including maiden name and any aliases and nicknames; 

(b)   Date of birth; 

(c)  Physical description; 

(d)   Current address and residence history for the past five years; 

(e)  Social Security Number, which information is voluntarily provided in accordance with 

§ 7 of the Privacy Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552a; 

(f)    Citizenship, and, if applicable, resident alien status, including any employment 

authorization and expiration date; country of which the applicant is a citizen, place of birth, 

port of entry to the United States and name and address of sponsor(s) upon the applicant's 

arrival; 

(g)   Last three jobs, and any gaming-related employment during the last ten years; 

(h)  Any license, permit, approval or registration held by or applied for by the applicant and 

required to participate in any gaming operation in  any jurisdiction; 

(i)  Any license, permit, approval or registration held by the applicant to work in the gaming 

industry that was suspended, revoked or denied or had any disciplinary action taken against 

in any jurisdiction; 

(j)   Any arrest, indictment, charge, or conviction of the applicant; 

(k) All governmental financial liens or judgments, including state tax liens, delinquent child 

support obligations, defaulted student loans, unemployment judgments, unpaid motor vehicle 

surcharges, and/or welfare judgments; 

(l)  Consent to fingerprinting, photographing, supplying of handwriting exemplars, and any 

lawful inspection, search, or seizure of the applicant, licensee, or registrant while present in 

a gaming establishment, and/or their personal effects present in a gaming establishment 

conducted in accordance with 205 CMR; 

(m)   A signed, dated Statement of Truth; and 

(n)  A signed, dated and notarized Release Authorization which shall direct all courts, law 

enforcement agencies, probation departments, selective service boards, employers, 

educational institutions, banks, financial and other institutions and all governmental agencies, 

federal, state and local both foreign and domestic, to release any and all information 

pertaining to the applicant as requested by the Commission and/or the Bureau. 

 
(6)  Business Entity Disclosure Form - Gaming Vendor- Primary. A Business Entity Disclosure 

Form Gaming Vendor- Primary (BED GVP) shall contain the following information: 

(a)  The current or former official and trade names used and the dates of use; 

(b)   The current post office address and, if a corporation, the name of the state under the 

laws of which it was incorporated, the location of its principal place of business and the 

names and addresses of its directors and stockholders; 

(c)  The  former business addresses within the last ten-year period and dates of use; 

(d)   The business telephone number; 

134



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.07:   continued 

 

(e)  The name, title and telephone number of the contact person; 

(f)    Whether the application is for initial licensure or retention of that license and, if 

retention, the license number and date of last submission; 

(g)  The business form and, as appropriate, a copy of the certificate of incorporation, charter, 

bylaws, partnership agreement and all amendments, trust agreement or other documentation 

relating to the legal organization of the enterprise; 

(h)  If a publicly traded corporation, the stock exchange its stock is traded on and its symbol; 

(i)   The Federal Employer Identification Number; 

(j)    A description of the present and any former business engaged in or intended to be 

engaged in by the vendor and any parent, holding, intermediary or subsidiary company within 

the past five years and similar information for former businesses for the past ten years; 

(k)    A description of the nature, type, number of shares, terms, conditions, rights and 

privileges of all classes of stock issued by the vendor, if any, and the amount outstanding of 

each, or which the vendor plans to issue; 

(l)   The identity of every person having a direct or indirect interest in the business and the 

nature of such interest; provided, however, that if the disclosed entity is a trust, the 

application shall disclose the names and addresses of all beneficiaries; provided further, that 

if the disclosed entity is a partnership, the application shall disclose the names and addresses 

of all partners, both general and limited; and provided further, that if the disclosed entity is 

a limited liability company, the application shall disclose the names and addresses of all 

members; 

(m)  The name, address, date of birth (if appropriate), class of non-voting stock, number and 

percentage of shares held by each person or entity having a beneficial interest in any 

non-voting stock; 

(n) The name, home address, date of birth, current title or position and, if applicable, 

number of shares and class of stock and percentage of ownership for the following persons: 

1.   Each officer, director or trustee; 

2.   Each partner whether general, limited or otherwise; 

3.   A sole proprietor; 

4. Each natural person or entity that directly or indirectly holds any beneficial or 

ownership interest of 5% or more of the entity completing the form; 

5.  Each sales representative or other person who will regularly solicit business from a 

casino licensee; 

6. Each management person who supervises a regional or local office which employs 

sales or junket representatives or other persons who regularly solicit business from a 

casino hotel; 

7.  Any other person not otherwise specified in 205 CMR 134.07(6)(n)1. through 6. who 

has signed or will sign any agreement with a  gaming licensee; 

8.  Each natural person who indirectly holds any beneficial or ownership interest of 10% 

or more of an applicant for a junket enterprise license; and 

9.  If a junket enterprise, each junket representative who will deal directly with gaming 

licensees and their employees. 

(o)  A flow chart which illustrates the ownership of any other vendor which holds an interest 

in the filing vendor; 

(p)  The name, last known address, date of birth, position, dates the position was held, and 

reason for leaving for any former officers or directors who held such office during the 

preceding ten years; 

(q)   The annual compensation of each partner, officer, director and trustee; 

(r) The name, home address, date of birth, position, length of time employed and the 

amount of compensation of each person, other than the persons identified in 205 

135



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.07:   continued 

 

CMR 134.07(6)(m), who is currently expected to receive annual compensation of 

more than 

$300,000; 

(s)   A description of all bonus, profit sharing, pension, retirement, deferred compensation 

or similar plans in existence or to be created by the vendor; 

(t)  If the vendor is a partnership, a description of the interest held by each partner, whether 

limited or general, amount of initial investment, amount of additional contribution, amount 

and nature of any anticipated future investments, degree of control of each partner, 

percentage of ownership of each partner, and method of distributing profits to each partner; 

(u)  A description of the nature, type, terms, covenants, and priorities of all outstanding debt 

and the name, address and date of birth of each debt holder or security holder, type and class 

of debt instrument held, original debt amount and current debt balance; 

(v)   A description of the nature, type, terms and conditions of all securities options; 

(w)   Within the last ten years, the following information for each account held by a bank, 

savings and loan association or other financial institution, whether foreign or domestic, in 

the name of the vendor or its nominee or which is otherwise under the direct or indirect 

control of the vendor: 

1.   The name and address of the financial institution; 

2.  The type of account; 

3.   The account numbers; and 

4.   The dates held. 

(x)   A description of the ten highest value contracts or agreements  in effect during the 

preceding 12 months to which it is a party including name, address and nature of the contract 

or goods or service provided; 

(y)  A description of any civil, criminal, administrative and investigatory proceedings in any 

jurisdiction in which the vendor or its subsidiaries have been involved as follows: 

1.   Any arrest, indictment, charge or conviction for any criminal or disorderly persons 

offense; 

2.  Any criminal proceeding in which the business or its subsidiaries has been a party or 

has been named as an unindicted co-conspirator; 

3.   Existing civil litigation if damages are reasonably expected to exceed $100,000, 

except for claims covered by insurance; 

4.   Any judgment, order, consent decree or consent order entered against the vendor 

pertaining to a violation or alleged violation of the federal antitrust, trade regulation or 

securities laws or similar laws of any state, province or country; and 

5.   Any judgment, order, consent decree or consent order entered against the vendor 

pertaining to a violation or alleged violation of any other state or federal statute, 

regulation or code which resulted in the imposition of a fine or penalty of $50,000 or 

more. 

(z)   Within the last ten years, for the vendor and any holding or intermediary company, 

information regarding any judgments or petitions by or against it for bankruptcy or 

insolvency and any relief sought under any provision of the Federal Bankruptcy Act or any 

state insolvency law, and any receiver, fiscal agent, trustee, reorganization trustee, or similar 

officer appointed for the property or business of the vendor or its parent, any holding, 

intermediary or subsidiary company; 

(aa)  Within the last ten years, whether the vendor has had any license or certificate denied, 

suspended or revoked by any government agency in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

or any other jurisdiction, the nature of such license or certificate, the agency and its location, 

the date of such action, the disposition, the reasons therefore, and the facts related thereto; 

(bb)  Whether the vendor has ever applied for a license, permit or authorization to participate 

136



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.07:   continued 

 

in any lawful gaming operation in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any other 

jurisdiction, the agency and its location, date of application, the nature of the license permit 

or authorization, number and expiration date; 

(cc)  Within the last ten years, whether the vendor or any director, officer, partner, employee 

or person acting for or on behalf of the vendor has made bribes or kickbacks to any 

employee, company, organization or government official, foreign or domestic, to obtain 

favorable treatment or to obtain a competitive advantage; 

(dd)     The names and addresses of any current or former directors, officers, partners, 

employees or third parties who would have knowledge or information concerning 205 CMR 

124.07(6)(aa); 

(ee)   A copy of each of the following: 

1.  Annual reports for the past five years; 

2.   If the enterprise is a corporation registered under the Securities Act of 1933 or the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, any annual reports prepared within the last five years 

on Form 10K pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; 

3.  An audited financial statement for the last fiscal year, including, without limitation, 

an income statement, balance sheet and statement of sources and application of funds, 

and all notes to such statements and related financial schedules; 

4.  Copies of all annual financial statements, whether audited or unaudited, prepared in 

the last five fiscal years, any exceptions taken to such statements by an independent 

auditor and the management response thereto; and an independent audit report of all 

financial activities and interests including, but not limited to, the disclosure of all 

contributions, donations, loans or any other financial transactions to or from a gaming 

entity or operator in the past five years; 

5.  Any current report prepared due to a change in control of the vendor, an acquisition 

or disposition of assets, a bankruptcy or receivership proceeding, a change in the vendor's 

certifying accountant or any other material event, or, if the vendor is registered with the 

SEC, a copy of the most recently filed Form 8K; 

6.    The most recent Proxy or Information Statement filed pursuant to § 14 of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

7.   Registration Statements filed in the last five years pursuant to the Securities Act of 

1933. 

(ff)  An organizational chart of the vendor, including position descriptions and the name of 

the person holding each position; 
(gg)  Copies of all Internal Revenue Forms 1120 (corporate income tax return), all Internal 

Revenue Forms 1065 (partnership return) or all Internal Revenue Forms 1040 (personal 

return) filed for the last five years; 

(hh)  A copy of a business registration certificate or other proof of valid business registration 

in Massachusetts; 

(ii)     A  Subcontractor Identification  Information  Form  completed  in accordance 

with  205 CMR 

134.07(11), if so authorized by the Bureau; 

(jj)  In addition to the information above, a completed BED GVP shall include the following 

documents, which shall be dated and signed by the president, chief executive officer, 

partners, general partner, sole proprietor or other authorized person and notarized: 

1.   A Statement of Truth; 

2.   A Release Authorization directing all courts, law enforcement agencies, probation 

departments, selective service boards, employers, educational institutions, banks, 

financial and other institutions and all governmental agencies, federal, state and local, 

both foreign and domestic, to release any and all information pertaining to the vendor as  

Formatted: Right:  -0.01"

Formatted: Not Highlight

137



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.07:   continued 

 

requested by the Commission; and 

3.     An acknowledgment of receipt of notice regarding confidentiality, and non 

refundability of filing fees. 

 
(7)    Business Entity Disclosure Form - Gaming Vendor- Secondary.   A Business Entity 

Disclosure Form Gaming Vendor- Secondary (BED GVS) shall contain the following 

information: 

(a)  The current or former official and trade names used and the dates of use; 

(b)   The current post office address and, if a corporation, the name of the state under the 

laws of which it was incorporated, the location of its principal place of business and the 

names and addresses of its directors and stockholders; 

(c)  The former business addresses within the last ten-year period and dates of use; 

(d)   The business telephone number; 

(e)  The name, title and telephone number of the contact person; 

(f)    Whether the application is for initial licensure or retention of that license and, if 

retention, the license number and date of last submission; 

(g)  The business form and, as appropriate, a copy of the certificate of incorporation, charter, 

bylaws, partnership agreement and all amendments, trust agreement or other documentation 

relating to the legal organization of the business; 

(h)  If a publicly traded corporation, the stock exchange its stock is traded on and its symbol; 

(i)   The Federal Employer Identification Number; 

(j)    A description of the nature, type, number of shares, terms, conditions, rights and 

privileges of all classes of stock issued by the vendor, if any, and the amount outstanding of 

each, or which the vendor plans to issue; 

(k)  The identity of every person having a direct or indirect interest in the business and the 

nature of such interest; provided, however, that if the disclosed entity is a trust, the 

application shall disclose the names and addresses of all beneficiaries; provided further, that 

if the disclosed entity is a partnership, the application shall disclose the names and addresses 

of all partners, both general and limited; and provided further, that if the disclosed entity is 

a limited liability company, the application shall disclose the names and addresses of all 

members; 

(l)  The name, home address, date of birth, current title or position and, if applicable, number 

of shares and class of stock and percentage of ownership for the following persons: 

1.   Each officer, director or trustee; 

2.   Each partner whether general, limited or otherwise; 

3.   A sole proprietor; 

4. Each natural person or entity that directly or indirectly holds any beneficial or 

ownership interest of 5% or more of the entity completing the form; 

5.  Each sales representative or other person who will regularly solicit business from a 

gaming licensee; 

6.  Any other person not otherwise specified in 205 CMR 134.07(7)(l)1. through 5. who 

has signed or will sign any agreement with a gaming licensee. 

(m)   The annual compensation of each partner, officer, director and trustee; 
(n)    The name, home address, date of birth, position, length of time employed and the 

amount of compensation of each person, other than the persons identified in 205 CMR 

134.07(7)(l), who is currently expected to receive annual compensation of more than 

$300,000; 

(o)  If the vendor is a partnership, a description of the interest held by each partner, whether 

limited or general, amount of initial investment, amount of additional contribution, amount 

and nature of any anticipated future investments, degree of control of each partner,  

138



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.07:   continued 

 

percentage of ownership of each partner, and method of distributing profits to each partner; 

(p)  A description of the nature, type, terms, covenants, and priorities of all outstanding debt 

and the name, address and date of birth of each debt holder or security holder, type and class 

of debt instrument held, original debt amount and current debt balance; 

(q)   A description of the nature, type, terms and conditions of all securities options; 

(r)   Within the last ten years, the following information for each account held by a bank, 

savings and loan association or other financial institution, whether foreign or domestic, in 

the name of the vendor or its nominee or which is otherwise under the direct or indirect 

control of the vendor: 

1.   The name and address of the financial institution; 

2.  The type of account; 

3.   The account numbers; and 

4.   The dates held. 

(s)  A description of any civil, criminal, administrative and investigatory proceedings in any 

jurisdiction in which the vendor or its subsidiaries have been involved as follows: 

1.   Any arrest, indictment, charge or conviction for any criminal or disorderly persons 

offense; 

2.  Any criminal proceeding in which the business or its subsidiaries has been a party or 

has been named as an unindicted co-conspirator; 

3.   Existing civil litigation if damages are reasonably expected to exceed $100,000, 

except for claims covered by insurance; 

4.   Any judgment, order, consent decree or consent order entered against the vendor 

pertaining to a violation or alleged violation of the federal antitrust, trade regulation or 

securities laws or similar laws of any state, province or country; and 

5.   Any judgment, order, consent decree or consent order entered against the vendor 

pertaining to a violation or alleged violation of any other state or federal statute, 

regulation or code which resulted in the imposition of a fine or penalty of $50,000 or 

more. 

(t)   Within the last ten years, for the vendor and any holding or intermediary company, 

information regarding any judgments or petitions by or against it for bankruptcy or 

insolvency and any relief sought under any provision of the Federal Bankruptcy Act or any 

state insolvency law, and any receiver, fiscal agent, trustee, reorganization trustee, or similar 

officer appointed for the property or business of the vendor or its parent, any holding, 

intermediary or subsidiary company; 

(u)  Within the last ten years, whether the vendor has had any license or certificate denied, 

suspended or revoked by any government agency in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

or any other jurisdiction, the nature of such license or certificate, the agency and its location, 

the date of such action, the disposition, the reasons therefore, and the facts related thereto; 

(v)  Whether the vendor has ever applied for a license, permit or authorization to participate 

in any lawful gaming operation in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any other 

jurisdiction, the agency and its location, date of application, the nature of the license permit 

or authorization, number and expiration date; 

(w)  Within the last ten years, whether the vendor or any director, officer, partner, employee 

or person acting for or on behalf of the vendor has made bribes or kickbacks to any 

employee, company, organization or government official, foreign or domestic, to obtain 

favorable treatment or to obtain a competitive advantage; 

(x)     The names and addresses of any current or former directors, officers, partners, 

employees or third parties who would have knowledge or information concerning 205 CMR 

134.07(7)(w); 

(y)  A copy of each of the following: 

139



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.07:   continued 

 

1.  Annual reports for the past five years; 

2.   If the enterprise is a corporation registered under the Securities Act of 1933 or the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, any annual reports prepared within the last five years 

on Form 10K pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; 

3.  An audited financial statement for the last fiscal year, including, without limitation, 

an income statement, balance sheet and statement of sources and application of funds, 

and all notes to such statements and related financial schedules; 

4.  Copies of all annual financial statements, whether audited or unaudited, prepared in 

the last five fiscal years, any exceptions taken to such statements by an independent 

auditor and the management response thereto; and an independent audit report of all 

financial activities and interests including, but not limited to, the disclosure of all 

contributions, donations, loans or any other financial transactions to or from a gaming 

entity or operator in the past five years; 

5.  Any current report prepared due to a change in control of the vendor, an acquisition 

or disposition of assets, a bankruptcy or receivership proceeding, a change in the vendor's 

certifying accountant or any other material event, or, if the vendor is registered with the 

SEC, a copy of the most recently filed Form 8K; 

6.    The most recent Proxy or Information Statement filed pursuant to § 14 of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

7.   Registration Statements filed in the last five years pursuant to the Securities Act of 

1933. 

(z)  An organizational chart of the vendor, including position descriptions and the name of 

the person holding each position; 

(aa)  Copies of all Internal Revenue Forms 1120 (corporate income tax return), all Internal 

Revenue Forms 1065 (partnership return) or all Internal Revenue Forms 1040 (personal 

return) filed for the last five years; 

(bb)  A copy of a business registration certificate or other proof of valid business registration 

in Massachusetts; 

(cc)     A Subcontractor Identification Information Form completed in accordance 

with 205 CMR 

134.07(11), if so authorized by the Bureau; 

(cc)    In addition to the information above, a completed BED GVS shall include the 

following documents, which shall be dated and signed by the president, chief executive 

officer, partners, general partner, sole proprietor or other authorized person and notarized: 

1.   A Statement of Truth; 

2.   A Release Authorization directing all courts, law enforcement agencies, probation 

departments, selective service boards, employers, educational institutions, banks, 

financial and other institutions and all governmental agencies, federal, state and local, 

both foreign and domestic, to release any and all information pertaining to the vendor as 

requested by the commission; and 

3.      An  acknowledgment  of  receipt  of  notice  regarding confidentiality and  non 

refundability of filing fees. 

 
(8)  Non-gaming Vendor Registration Form.  A Non-gaming Vendor Registration Form shall 

contain the following information: 

(a)  Any official or trade name used by the non-gaming vendor; 

(b)   The current address and telephone number of the non-gaming vendor; 

(c)  The nature of the non-gaming vendor's business and the type of goods and services to 

be provided to  a gaming licensee; 

(d)   The Federal Employer Identification Number; 

Formatted: Right:  -0.01"

Formatted: Not Highlight

140



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.07:   continued 

 

(e)   The name, residence address, social security number, and date of birth of each of the 

following persons: 

1.  The sales representative(s) or other person(s) who solicit(s) business from a gaming 

licensee or applicant and such person's immediate supervisors; and 

2.  Any person authorized to sign any agreement with the gaming licensee or applicant 

on behalf of the vendor; and 

3.  The name(s), address(es) and percentage of ownership held by each entity or person 

directly owning more than five percent of the enterprise. 

(f)      A  Subcontractor  Identification  Information  Form  completed  in  accordance  with  

205  CMR 

134.07(11), if so authorized by the Bureau. 

(g)  Consent to fingerprinting, photographing, and the supplying of handwriting exemplars 

signed by any individual identified in accordant to 205 CMR 134.07(8)(e). 

(h)    A Release Authorization directing all courts, law enforcement agencies, probation 

departments, selective service boards, employers, educational institutions, banks, financial 

and other institutions and all governmental agencies, federal, state and local, both foreign and 

domestic, to release any and all information pertaining to the vendor as requested by the 

Commission. 

 
(9)  Labor Organization Registration Statement. A Labor Organization Registration Statement 

shall  contain the following information: 

(a)  The name of the registrant as shown on its charter or in its constitution; 

(b)   The current business addresses of the registrant, including the address, telephone and 

fax numbers of any office where matters pertaining to employees of a gaming licensee will 

be conducted; 

(c)  The name, title, email address, telephone and fax numbers of a primary contact person; 

(d)   Whether the submission is an initial or biennial renewal registration; 

(e)  The names of the registrant's parent organization and all affiliates of the registrant or its 

parent organization, whether chartered by the parent organization or governed by the same 

constitution or bylaws; 

(f)    The name and nature of the actual or probable involvement of any affiliate which 

represents or is seeking to represent employees who are employed in a gaming establishment 

or which is involved or seeking to be involved in the control or direction of such 

representation; 

(g) Financial data, including information concerning any financial interests held in a gaming 

establishment; and 

(h)   The name, address and, where applicable, date of birth, title or position and authority 

or responsibility, of the following persons or entities: 

1.  Any pension or welfare system maintained by the registrant; 

2.  Each officer and agent of any pension or welfare system maintained by the registrant; 

3.  Each officer and officer-elect of the registrant; 

4.   Each agent authorized to represent the registrant in Massachusetts; and 

5.  Each principal employee of the registrant. 

(i)   A notarized Statement of Truth, which shall be dated and signed by the registrant's 

president or other authorized officer; 

(j)  A waiver of liability as to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and its instrumentalities 

and agents for any damages resulting to the registrant from any disclosure or publication of 

information acquired during the investigation process; 

 

 

Formatted: Right:  -0.01"

Formatted: Not Highlight

141



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.07:   continued 

 
(10) Labor Organization Individual Disclosure Form.   A Labor Organization Individual 

Disclosure Form shall contain the following information: 

(a)   Name, including maiden name and any aliases or nicknames; 

(b)   Title or position with the labor organization; 

(c)  Date and place of birth; 

(d)   Physical description; 

(e)  Current address and home telephone number, email address, and residence history for 

the past year; 

(f)  Social Security Number, which information is voluntarily provided in accordance with 

§ 7 of the Privacy Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552a; 

(g)   Citizenship and, if applicable, information concerning resident alien status; 

(h)   Full name of the labor organization represented; 

(i)   Telephone number and email address at current place of employment; 

(j)  Employment history: 

1. All positions held with a labor organization, union or affiliate, whether or not 

compensated, for the past five years; and 

2.  Last three jobs, indicating any gaming-related positions; 

(k)  Licenses or other approvals held or applied for which are required to participate in any 

lawful gambling operation in  the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any jurisdiction; 

(l)   A signed, dated and notarized Statement of Truth; 

(m) A waiver of liability as to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and its instrumentalities 

and agents for any damages resulting to the officer, agent or principal employee from any 

disclosure or publication of information acquired during the investigation process. 

(11)  Subcontractor Identification Information Form. A Subcontractor Identification 

Information Form shall contain the following information: 

(a)  A list of all known and anticipated subcontractors including the The official or trade 

name (for purposes of 205 CMR 134.07(11) a subcontractor shall be considered a person 

that contracts with a licensed or registered vendor to provide goods or services necessary to 

fulfill the licensed or registered vendor's contract with a gaming licensee); 

(b)    The current address, telephone number, email address, and any website for the 

subcontractor; 

(c)   The nature of the subcontractor's business and the type of goods and services to be 

provided to the vendor including the term and value of the contract; 

(d)   The Federal Employer Identification Number of the subcontractor; 

(e)   The name, residence address, social security number, and date of birth of each of any 

person authorized to sign any agreement with the vendor on behalf of the subcontractor; and 

(f)  Consent to fingerprinting, photographing, and the supplying of handwriting exemplars 

signed by any individual identified in accordance with 205 CMR 134.07(11); 

(g)   The name(s), address(es) and percentage of ownership held by each entity or person 

directly owning more than 5% of the enterprise; 

(h)    A Release Authorization directing all courts, law enforcement agencies, probation 

departments, selective service boards, employers, educational institutions, banks, financial 

and other institutions and all governmental agencies, federal, state and local, both foreign and 

domestic, to release any and all information pertaining to the subcontractor as requested by 

the commission. 

 
134.08:   Submission of Application 

 
(1)  An application for the initial issuance of a key gaming employee license in accordance with 

205 CMR 134.01, a gaming employee license in accordance with 205 CMR 134.02, a gaming  

142



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.08:   continued 

 

service employee registration in accordance with 205 CMR 134.03, a gaming vendor license in 

accordance with 205 CMR 134.04(1), a non-gaming vendor registration in accordance with 

205  CMR  134.04(2), a Gaming  Vendor  qualifier  license in  accordance with  205 CMR 

134.04(1)(c), a Labor Organization registration in accordance with 205 CMR 134.05, and 

officers, agents, and principal employees of a Labor Organization in accordance with 205 CMR 

134.05 shall include all of the following: 

(a)   A completed application form as follows: 

1.       An  applicant  for  a  key  gaming  employee-executive  license  shall  file  a 

Multi-jurisdictional Personal History Disclosure Form For Key Gaming Employees- 

executive and Gaming Vendor Qualifiers as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(1) and a 

Massachusetts Supplement Form For Key Gaming Employees- executive and Gaming 

Vendor Qualifiers as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(2); 

2.   An applicant for a key gaming employee- standard license shall file a Key Gaming 

Employee-standard Application Form as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(3); 

3.  An applicant for a gaming employee license shall file a Gaming Employee License 

Form as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(4); 

4.  An applicant for a gaming service employee registration shall file a Gaming Service 

Employee Registration Form as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(5); 

5.    An applicant for a gaming vendor-primary license shall file a Business Entity 

Disclosure Form- Gaming Vendor-primary as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(6); 

6.   An applicant for a Gaming Vendor-secondary license shall file a Business Entity 

Disclosure Form- Gaming Vendor-secondary as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(7); 

7.   An applicant for a non-gaming vendor registration shall file a Non-gaming Vendor 

Registration Form as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(8); 

8.  A gaming vendor-primary qualifier (individual) shall file a Key Gaming Employee-

standard 

Application Form as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(2); 

9. A gaming vendor-secondary qualifier (individual) 

shall file a Gaming Employee Application Form as 

set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(4); 

910. A gaming vendor-primary qualifier (entity) shall file a Business Entity 

Disclosure Form- Gaming Vendor-primary as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(6); 

11. A gaming vendor-secondary qualifier (entity) shall file a Business Entity 

Disclosure Form – Gaming Vendor-Secondary as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(7) 

1012.  A Labor Organization shall file a Labor Organization Registration Statement as 

set 

forth in 205 CMR 134.07(9); 

1113.  Officers, agents, and principal employees of a Labor Organization shall file a 

Labor 

Organization Individual Disclosure Form as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(10). 

(b)   A passport style photograph of the applicant, taken within the preceding 12 months; 

(c)  Proof of fingerprinting in accordance with 205 CMR 134.13; 

(d)   The documents required for identification by 205 CMR 134.14 

(e)  Any applicable fee required by 205 CMR 134.15. 

(f)    (For Gaming Employees and Gaming Service Employees) Proof of an offer of 

employment from a gaming licensee pending licensure or registration of the applicant. 

 
(2)  N o t w i t h s t a n d i n g  2 0 5  C M R  1 3 4 . 0 8 ( 1 ) ( a ) ,  a  q u a l i f i e r  f o r  a  g a m i n g  

v e n d o r  l i c e n s e  m a y ,  i f  a u t h o r i z e d  b y  t h e  B u r e a u ,  f i l e  l i c e n s i n g  

i n f o r m a t i o n ,  i n c l u d i n g  b u t  n o t  l i m i t e d  t o ,  f o r  p u b l i c l y  t r a d e d  

Formatted: Not Expanded by / Condensed by 

143



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.08:   continued 

 

 c o m p a n i e s ,  c o p i e s  o f  t h e i r  p u b l i c  s e c u r i t i e s  f i l i n g s  a n d / o r  a u d i t e d  

c o n s o l i d a t e d  f i n a n c i a l  s t a t e m e n t s  f o r  a  p e r i o d  a s  d e t e r m i n e d  b y  t h e  

B u r e a u ,  i n  l i e u  o f  t h e  f o r m  i d e n t i f i e d  i n  2 0 5  C M R  1 3 4 . 0 8 ( 1 ) ( a ) .  

 

(3) An applicant for a key gaming employee license who has previously been issued a positive 

determination of suitability by the Commission as part of an RFA-1 investigation  may file 

supplemental licensing information that updates their previous filing submitted as part of the 

qualifier suitability investigation as directed by the Division of Licensing in lieu of the full 

application identified in 205 CMR 134.08(1)(a). 

 
(34)   Each applicant shall file a complete application pursuant to 205 CMR 134.08(1) with 

the Bureau by mail, in person at the address specified on the application form, or via the 

Com mission's website.  The Bureau shall not accept an incomplete application. 

 
(45)  Reciprocity for Vendors. If an applicant for a gaming vendor license or non-gaming 

vendor registration is licensed or registered in another jurisdiction within the United States 

with comparable license and registration requirements, as determined by the Bureau, and is in 

good standing in all jurisdictions in which it holds a license or registration, the commission may 

enter into a reciprocal agreement with the applicant, upon the recommendation of the Bureau, to 

allow for an abbreviated licensing or registration process and issue a gaming vendor license 

or registration in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00; provided, however, as part of any such 

an agreement that the commission shall reserve its rights to investigate the qualifications of 

an applicant at any time and may require the applicant to submit to a full application for a 

gaming vendor license or provide further information for registration.  The reciprocal 

agreement shall identify the nature of the investigation to be conducted prior to issuance of the 

requested license or registration including, but not limited to, such provisos as the review of 

any investigatory reports from any jurisdictions in which the applicant is approved to conduct 

business, interviewing of any witnesses, and the filing of all required Massachusetts business 

filings. 

 
(56)  Scope of Duties. An employee of a gaming establishment may, where otherwise 

qualified, engage in the following duties without further licensure by the commission: 

(a)  A person who is licensed as a Key Gaming Employee-executive may, where otherwise 

qualified, engage in the performance of duties of a Key Gaming Employee-standard, gaming 

employee or gaming service employee. 

(b)  A person who is licensed as a Key Gaming Employee-standard may, where otherwise 

qualified, engage in the performance of duties of a gaming employee or gaming service 

employee. 

(c)   A person who is licensed as a gaming employee may engage in the performance of 

duties of a gaming service employee. 

 
 

134.09:   Investigation, Determination, and Appeals for Gaming Establishment Employees and Vendors 

 
(1)    Upon receipt of an application for a key gaming employee license in accordance with 

205 CMR 134.01, a gaming employee license in accordance with 205 CMR 134.02, a gaming 

service employee registration in accordance with 205 CMR 134.03, a gaming vendor license in 

accordance with 205 CMR 134.04(1), a non-gaming vendor registration in accordance with 

205 CMR 134.04(42), a gaming vendor qualifier license in accordance with 205 CMR 

134.04(4), or a Labor Organization in accordance with 205 CMR 134.05 the Division of 

Licensing shall conduct a review of each application for administrative completeness and  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

144



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.09:   continued 

 

then forward the application to the Bureau which shall conduct an investigation of the 

applicant. In the event an application is deemed incomplete, the Division of Licensing may 

either request supplemental information from the applicant or forward the application to the 

commission with a recommendation that it be denied. For individuals, the investigation shall 

include obtaining and reviewing criminal offender record information from the Department of 

Criminal Justice Information Services (DCJIS) and exchanging fingerprint data and criminal 

history with the Massachusetts Department of State Police and the United States Federal Bureau 

of Investigation. The investigation shall be conducted for purposes of determining whether 

the applicant is suitable to be issued a license or registration in accordance with 205 CMR 

134.10 and 134.11. 
In determining the weight to be afforded any information bearing on suitability in accordance 

with 205 CMR 134.10 and 134.11, the Division of Licensing, Bureau, or commission, as 

applicable, shall consider: the relevance of the information to employment in a gaming 

establishment or doing business with a gaming establishment in general, whether there is a 

pattern evident in the information, and whether the applicant is likely to be involved in gaming 

related activity.  Further, the information will be considered in the light most favorable to the 

applicant unless the information cannot be so viewed pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23K or the 

information obtained does not otherwise support such view. For purposes of 205 CMR 134.00 

and M.G.L. c. 23K, § 16 an adjudication of delinquency shall not be considered a conviction. 

Such a finding may, however, be considered for purposes of determining the suitability of an 

applicant.   Records of criminal appearances, criminal dispositions, and/or any information 

concerning acts of delinquency that have been sealed shall not be considered for purposes of 

making a suitability determination in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00 and M.G.L. c. 23K. 

(a)   Keys Gaming Employee- Executive, Key Gaming Employee- Standard, and Gaming 

Employees. Upon completion of the investigation conducted in accordance with 205 CMR 

134.09(1) the Bureau shall either approve or deny the application for a key gaming 

employee- executive license, key gaming employee-standard license or a gaming employee 

license pursuant to 205 CMR 134.10.  If the application for a Key Gaming Employee- 

standard license or Gaming Employee license is approved, the Bureau shall forward a written 

approval to the Division of Licensing which shall issue a license to the applicant on behalf 

of the Commission.  If the Bureau approves the application for a Key Gaming Employee- 

executive, the decision shall be forwarded to the Commission as a recommendation along 

with the application materials for review and issuance of the license.  If the application is 

denied, the Bureau shall forward the recommendation for denial and reasons therefor to the 

Division of Licensing which shall issue a written decision to the applicant explaining the 

reasons for the denial. The decision shall include an advisory to the applicant that they may 

appeal the decision to the Bureau in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(2).  If the denial is 

based upon information contained in the individual's criminal record the decision shall also 

include an advisory that the individual will be provided with a copy of their criminal record 

upon request and that they may challenge the accuracy of any relevant entry therein.  The 

decision may be served via first class mail or via email to the addresses provided by the 

applicant on the application. 

(b)  Gaming Service Employees.  The  Division of Licensing shall issue a gaming service 

employee registration to the applicant on behalf of the Commission in accordance with 

205 CMR 134.11(1).  In the event that the Bureau determines upon completion of the 

investigation conducted in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(1) that the applicant should be 

disqualified from holding a registration or is otherwise unsuitable in accordance with 

205 CMR 134.11, it shall forward the results of the investigation to the Division of Licensing 

which shall issue a written notice to the registrant revoking the registration. The notice shall 

include an advisory to the applicant that they shall immediately cease employment at the  

145



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.09:   continued 

 

gaming establishment and may request an appeal hearing before the Bureau in accordance 

with 205 CMR 134.09(2).  If the denial is based upon information contained in the 

individual's criminal record the decision shall also include an advisory that the individual will 

be provided with a copy of their criminal record upon request and that they may challenge 

the accuracy of any relevant entry therein.  The notice may be served via first class mail or 

via email to the addresses provided by the applicant on the application. 

(c)  Gaming Vendors and Gaming Vendor Qualifiers. Upon completion of the investigation 

conducted in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(1) the Bureau shall either approve or deny 

the application for a gaming vendor license pursuant to 205 CMR 134.10.  If the Bureau 

approves the application for a Gaming Vendor license and any associated applications for 

Gaming Vendor qualifier licenses, the decisions shall be forwarded to the Commission as a 

recommendation along with the application materials for review and issuance of the license. 

If  an  application for a Gaming vendor qualifier license is approved by the Bureau 

subsequent to the issuance of the Gaming Vendor license by the commission, the Bureau 

shall forward a written approval to the Division of Licensing which shall issue a license to 

the applicant on behalf of the Commission.  If the application is denied, the Bureau shall 

forward the recommendation for denial and reasons therefor to the Division of Licensing 

which shall issue a written decision to the applicant explaining the reasons for the denial. 

The decision shall include an advisory to the applicant that they may appeal the decision to 
the Bureau in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(2). If the denial is based upon information 

contained in a person's criminal record the decision shall also include an advisory that the 
person will be provided with a copy of their criminal record upon request and that they may 
challenge the accuracy of any relevant entry therein.  The decision may be served via first 

class mail or via email to the addresses provided by the applicant on the application. 
(d)   Non-gaming Vendors.  The  Division of Licensing shall issue a non-gaming vendor 
registration to the applicant on behalf of the Commission in accordance with 205 CMR 

134.11(1).  In the event that the Bureau determines upon completion of the investigation 
conducted in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(1) that the applicant should be disqualified 
from holding a registration or is otherwise unsuitable in accordance with 205 CMR 134.11, 

it shall forward the results of the investigation to the Division of Licensing which shall issue 
a written notice to the registrant revoking the registration.  The notice shall include an 
advisory to the applicant that they shall immediately cease doing business with the gaming 

establishment and may request an appeal hearing before the Bureau in accordance with 
205 CMR 134.09(2).  If the denial is based upon information contained in the person's 
criminal record the decision shall also include an advisory that the person will be provided 

with a copy of their criminal record upon request and that they may challenge the accuracy 
of any relevant entry therein.  The notice may be served via first class mail or via email to 
the addresses provided by the applicant on the application. 

(e)   Labor Organizations.  The Bureau shall issue a Labor Organization registration to the 
applicant on behalf of the Commission in accordance with 205 CMR 134.11(1). 

 
(2)   If an application for a key gaming employee license, gaming employee license, gaming 
service employee registration, gaming vendor license, non-gaming vendor registration, or gaming 

vendor qualifier license is denied or revoked in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(1) the 
applicant may appeal the decision and request a hearing before the Bureau within 30 days of 
service of the decision. The request for an appeal hearing must be in writing on a form provided 

by the Bureau and contain an explanation of the basis for the appeal. 
 

(3)  The Bureau shall appoint a hearing officer to preside over the appeal hearing requested by 
an applicant in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(2).  The hearing will be conducted in 
accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A and 801 CMR 1.02:  Informal/Fair Hearing Rules.  An audio  

146



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.09:   continued 

 

recording of the hearing shall be taken. The hearing officer shall issue a written decision to the 
applicant.  The hearing officer may affirm the denial of the application or revocation of the 
registration, reverse the decision and recommend that the license or registration be issued, or 

recommend that the license or registration be issued with conditions. The hearing officer may 
recommend any condition that is reasonably calculated to ensure faithful performance of the 
employee's duties or vendor's obligations. The decision shall include an advisory to the applicant 

that they may appeal the decision to the commission in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(5). 
The decision may be served via first class mail or via email to the addresses provided by the 
applicant on the application. 

 
(4)  After a hearing conducted in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(3) the following shall apply: 

(a) If the hearing officer recommends that a Key Gaming Employee-standard license, 

Gaming Employee license, gaming service employee registration, Gaming vendor qualifier, 
or non-gaming vendor registration be issued, the Division of Licensing shall issue a license 

or registration to the applicant on behalf of the Commission. 
(b)       If  the  hearing  officer  recommends  that  the  application  for  a  Key  Gaming 
Employee-executive or Gaming vendor license be issued, the decision shall be forwarded to 

the Commission as a recommendation along with the application and appeal materials for 
review and issuance of the license. 

 
(5)   If an application for a key gaming employee license, gaming employee license, gaming 
service employee registration, gaming vendor license, non-gaming vendor registration, or gaming 
vendor qualifier is denied or approved with conditions in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(3) 

the applicant may appeal the decision and request a hearing before the commission within 30 
days of service of the decision. The request for an appeal hearing must be in writing on a form 
provided by the commission and contain an explanation of the basis for the appeal. The hearing 

will be conducted at a public meeting solely on the record of the administrative proceedings 
conducted by the Bureau in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(3). The Bureau shall forward a 
copy of the administrative record of the proceeding to the commission promptly upon receipt of 

the notice of appeal. 

 
(6)  After the hearing conducted in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(5) the commission shall 

issue a written decision to the applicant.  The commission may affirm the denial of the 

application or revocation of the registration, reverse the decision and order that the license or 

registration be issued, order that the license or registration be issued with conditions or remand 

the matter to the Bureau for further proceedings.  The commission may impose any condition 

that is reasonably calculated to ensure faithful performance of the employee's duties or vendor's 

obligations. 

 
(7)  In reviewing the Bureau's decision in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(6), the commission 

may consider whether the decision or any condition imposed is: 
(a)  In excess of the statutory or regulatory authority or jurisdiction of the commission; or 

(b)   Based upon an error of law; or 

(c)  Made upon unlawful procedure; or 

(d)   Unsupported by substantial evidence; or 

(e)  Arbitrary or capricious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwise not in accordance with law. 

 
(8)  The decision of the commission made in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(6) and (7) shall 

be final and an applicant shall not be entitled to further review. 

 

 

147



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

 
134.10:  Affirmative License Standards for the Licensing of Employees and Vendors of the Gaming 

Establishment 

 
(1)  An applicant for a key gaming employee license, gaming employee license, gaming vendor 

license, and a gaming vendor qualifier license shall establish its individual qualifications for 

licensure by clear and convincing evidence. 

 
(2)   In determining whether an applicant for licensure is suitable for purposes of being issued 

a key gaming employee license, gaming employee license, gaming vendor license, or gaming 

vendor qualifier license, or having any of these licenses renewed, the Bureau shall evaluate and 

consider the overall reputation of the applicant including, without limitation: 

(a)   the integrity, honesty, good character and reputation of the applicant; 

(b)   the financial stability, integrity and background of the applicant; 

(c)  whether the applicant has a history of compliance with gaming licensing requirements 

in other jurisdictions; 
(d)   whether the applicant, at the time of application, is a defendant in litigation; 

(e) whether the applicant is disqualified from receiving a license under 205 CMR 134.10(3); 

(f)  whether the applicant has been convicted of a crime of moral turpitude; 

(g)   whether and to what extent the individual has associated with members of organized 

crime and other persons of disreputable character; 

(h)   the extent to which the individual has cooperated with the Bureau in connection with 

the background investigation; 
(i)   (for vendors) the integrity, honesty, and good character of any subcontractor. 

 
(3)  The Bureau and Commission shall deny an application for a key gaming employee license, 

gaming employee license, gaming vendor license, or gaming vendor qualifier license if the 

applicant: 

(a)  has been convicted of a felony or other crime involving embezzlement, theft, fraud or 

perjury; 

(b)  submitted an application for a license under M.G.L. c. 23K, § 30 and 205 CMR 134.00 

that intentionally contains false or misleading information; 

(c)  committed prior acts which have not been prosecuted or in which the applicant was not 

convicted but form a pattern of misconduct that makes the applicant unsuitable for a license; 

or 

(d)    has affiliates or close associates that would not qualify for a license or whose 

relationship with the applicant may pose an injurious threat to the interests of the 

commonwealth in awarding a gaming license to the applicant. 
 

(4)   Rehabilitation. 

(a)  An applicant for a Key gaming employee license, gaming employee license or a gaming 

vendor qualifier license may provide proof of rehabilitation from a criminal conviction as 

part of the application for licensure. 
(b)  An applicant for a Key gaming employee license may not appeal a decision made by the 

Bureau to the Commission in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(6) that was based upon a 

disqualifying prior conviction in accordance with 205 CMR 134.10(3)(a) on the basis that 

they wish to demonstrate rehabilitation. 

(c)   An applicant for a Gaming employee license or gaming vendor qualifier license may 

appeal a decision made by the Bureau based upon a disqualifying prior conviction in 

accordance with 205 CMR 134.10(3)(a) on the basis that they wish to demonstrate 

rehabilitation only if the conviction occurred before the ten year period immediately 

preceding the date of submission of the application for licensure or registration. 

(d)  In its discretion, the Bureau and/or Commission may issue a Gaming employee license 

148



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.10:   continued 

 

or Gaming vendor qualifier license to an applicant who can affirmatively demonstrate the 

applicant's rehabilitation. In considering the rehabilitation of an applicant the Bureau and 

Commission shall consider the following: 

1.  the nature and duties of the position of the applicant; 

2.  the nature and seriousness of the offense or conduct; 

3.   the circumstances under which the offense or conduct occurred; 

4.  the date of the offense or conduct; 

5.   the age of the applicant when the offense or conduct was committed; 

6.  whether the offense or conduct was an isolated or repeated incident; 

7.   any social conditions which may have contributed to the offense or conduct; and 

8.  any evidence of rehabilitation, including recommendations and references of persons 

supervising the applicant since the offense or conduct was committed. 

(e)  Any applicant may appeal a decision made by the Bureau based upon a conviction for 

a crime of moral turpitude as set forth in 205 CMR 134.10(2)(f). In its discretion, the Bureau 

and Commission may issue a Key gaming employee license, Gaming employee license, or 

gaming vendor qualifier license to an applicant who can affirmatively demonstrate the 

applicant's rehabilitation.  In considering the rehabilitation of an applicant, the Bureau and 

Commission shall consider the factors outlined in 205 CMR 134.10(4)(d). 

(f)  An applicant for a license or registration shall be at least 18 years of age at the time of 

application. 

 
134.11:  Affirmative Registration Standards for the Registration of Employees and Vendors of the Gaming 

Establishment and Labor Organizations 

 
(1)  Upon submission of an administratively complete application for registration as a gaming 

service employee, non-gaming vendor, or Labor Organization by an applicant the Bureau shall 

issue the registration on behalf of the Commission in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(1). A 

registration may be subsequently revoked if it is determined that the applicant is disqualified in 

accordance with 205 CMR 134.11(2) or unsuitable for any criteria identified in 205 CMR 

134.11(3). 

 
(2)   The Bureau and Commission shall deny and/or revoke a registration as a gaming service 

employee or non-gaming vendor registrant if the individual applicant or individual identified in 

205 CMR 134.07(8)(e): 

(a)  has been convicted of a felony or other crime involving embezzlement, theft, fraud or 

perjury; 

(b)  submitted an application for a license under M.G.L. c. 23K, § 30 and 205 CMR 134.00 

that intentionally contains false or misleading information; 

(c)  committed prior acts which have not been prosecuted or in which the applicant was not 

convicted but form a pattern of misconduct that makes the applicant unsuitable; or 

(d)    has affiliates or close associates that would not qualify for a license or whose 

relationship with the applicant may pose an injurious threat to the interests of the 

commonwealth in awarding a gaming license to the applicant. 

 
(3)  In determining whether an applicant for registration is suitable for purposes of being issued 

a gaming service employee registration or non-gaming vendor registration, or having a 

registration renewed, the Bureau may evaluate and consider the overall reputation of the 

applicant including, without limitation: 

(a)   the integrity, honesty, good character and reputation of the applicant; 

149



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  
 

 
134.11:   continued 

 
(b) the financial stability, integrity and background of the applicant; 

(c)  whether the applicant has a history of compliance with gaming licensing requirements 

in other jurisdictions; 

(d)   whether the applicant, at the time of application, is a defendant in litigation; 

(e) whether the applicant is disqualified from receiving a license under 205 CMR 134.11(2); 

(f)  whether the applicant has been convicted of a crime of moral turpitude; 

(g)   whether and to what extent the individual has associated with members of organized 

crime and other persons of disreputable character; 

(h)   the extent to which the individual has cooperated with the Bureau in connection with 

the background investigation; 

(i)   (for vendors) the integrity, honesty, and good character of any subcontractor. 

 
(4)   Rehabilitation. 

(a) The holder of a Gaming service employee registration or non-gaming vendor registration 

may appeal a decision made by the Bureau based upon a disqualifying prior conviction in 

accordance with 205 CMR 134.11(2) on the basis that they wish to demonstrate 

rehabilitation only if the conviction occurred before the ten year period immediately 

preceding application for licensure or registration. 

(b)  In its discretion, the Bureau and/or Commission may issue a Gaming service employee 

registration or a non-gaming vendor registration to an applicant who can affirmatively 

demonstrate the applicant's rehabilitation. In considering the rehabilitation of an applicant 

the Bureau and Commission shall consider the following: 

1.  the nature and duties of the position of the applicant; 

2.  the nature and seriousness of the offense or conduct; 

3.   the circumstances under which the offense or conduct occurred; 

4.  the date of the offense or conduct; 

5.   the age of the applicant when the offense or conduct was committed; 

6.  whether the offense or conduct was an isolated or repeated incident; 

7.   any social conditions which may have contributed to the offense or conduct; and 

8.  any evidence of rehabilitation, including recommendations and references of persons 

supervising the applicant since the offense or conduct was committed. 

(c)  Any applicant may appeal a decision made by the Bureau based upon a conviction for 

a crime of moral turpitude as set forth in 205 CMR 134.11(3). In its discretion, the Bureau 

and Commission may issue a Gaming service employee registration or non-gaming vendor 

registration to an applicant who can affirmatively demonstrate the applicant's rehabilitation. 

In considering the rehabilitation of an applicant, the Bureau and Commission shall consider 

the factors outlined in 205 CMR 134.11(4)(b). 

(5)   An applicant for a registration shall be at least 18 years of age at the time of application. 

(6) The Bureau may deny an application for registration as a non-gaming vendor if it determines 

that the applicant formed the applicant entity for the sole purpose of circumventing 205 CMR 
134.04(1)(b). 

 
134.12:   Temporary Licenses 

 
(1)    Upon petition to the Commission by a gaming licensee, the Commission may issue a 

temporary license to an applicant for a key gaming employee license, a gaming employee license, 

150



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

 134.12:   continued 

 

or a gaming vendor license if: 

(a)   the applicant for a key gaming employee license,  a gaming employee license, or a 

gaming vendor license has filed a completed application with the commission; and 

(b)    the gaming licensee certifies, and the Commission finds, that the issuance of a 

temporary license is necessary for the operation of the gaming establishment and is not 

designed to circumvent the normal licensing procedures. 

 
(2)  Unless otherwise stated by the Commission, a temporary license issued in accordance with 

205 CMR 134.12 shall expire six months from the date of its issuance and may be renewed, at 

the discretion of the Commission, for an additional six-month period. 

(3)  Standard of Review. A Temporary license may be issued upon a finding that the license is 

reasonably likely to be issued upon completion of the investigation. 

 
134.13:   Fingerprinting 

 
Each applicant for a key gaming employee license, gaming employee license, gaming service 

employee registration, gaming vendor license, or non-gaming vendor registration shall be 

fingerprinted under the supervision of the Commission. The Commission may, for good cause 

shown, permit an applicant to alternatively submit three sets of classifiable fingerprints on 

fingerprint impression cards provided by the Commission. 

 
134.14:   Identification 

 
(1)  Every individual applicant for a license or registration shall establish his or her identity to 

a reasonable certainty. 

 
(2)   An  individual applicant for a license or registration may establish their identity pursuant 

to 205 CMR 134.14(1) by providing either: 

(a)   One of the following authentic documents: 

1.  A current and valid United States passport; 

2.  A Certificate of United States Citizenship, or a Certificate of Naturalization, issued 

by the United States Department of Homeland Security, Citizenship and Immigration 

Services (USCIS); or 

3.  A current and valid identification card issued by the USCIS containing a photograph 

or fingerprints and identifying information such as name, date of birth, sex, height, color 

of eyes and address; or 

(b)  A certified copy of a birth certificate issued by a state, county or municipal authority in 

the United States bearing an official seal, and any one of the following authentic documents: 

1. A  current  and  valid  driver's  license  containing  a  photograph  or  identifying 

information  such as name, date of birth, sex, height, color of eyes and address; 

2.   A current and valid identification card issued to persons who serve in the United 

States   military or their dependents by the United States Department of Defense 

containing a photograph or identifying information such as name, date of birth, sex, 

height, color of eyes and address; 

3.  A current and valid student identification card containing a photograph, an expiration 

date, the seal or logo of the issuing institution, and the signature of the card holder; 

4.  A current and valid identification card issued by a federal, state or local government 

agency containing a photograph or identifying information such as name, date of birth, 

sex, height, color of eyes and address; or 

(c)   A current and valid foreign passport with an employment authorization issued by the 

151



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.14:   continued 

 

USCIS, and any one of the following authentic documents: 

1.     A current and valid driver's license containing a photograph or identifying 

information such as name, date of birth, sex, height, color of eyes and address; 

2.   A current and valid identification card issued to persons who serve in the United 

States military or their dependents by the United States Department of Defense 

containing a photograph or identifying information such as name, date of birth, sex, 

height, color of eyes and address; 

3.  A current and valid student identification card containing a photograph, an expiration 

date, the seal or logo of the issuing institution, and the signature of the card holder; 

4.  A current and valid identification card issued by a federal, state or local government 

agency containing a photograph or identifying information such as name, date of birth, 

sex, height, color of eyes and address. 

 
(3)  Any individual whose current legal name is different from the name on his or her certified 

birth certificate (for example, maiden name) must show legal proof of the name change. Such 

proof includes a certified marriage or civil union certificate, divorce decree or court order linking 

the new name with the previous name, provided that, a divorce decree may be used as authority 

to resume using a previous name only if it contains the new name and permits a return to use of 

the previous name. 

 
(4) Any individual required to establish his or her identity pursuant  to 205 CMR 134.14 who 

is not a United States citizen shall also be required to demonstrate that he or she is authorized 

to work in the United States. 

 
(5)  Any individual may request that the commission change the name designated on his or her 

application, license or registration by establishing identity pursuant to 205 CMR 134.14 or by 

providing a certified copy of certificate of marriage, a divorce decree or court order from this or 

any other state, which evidences the requested name change. 

 
134.15:   Fees 

 
(1)    The following non-refundable initial fees shall be paid at the time of application for 

licensure, registration, or renewal: 

(a)   Key Gaming Employee.  Initial fee:  $1000.00, submitted with the application.  The 

applicant shall be billed for the efforts of the Commission and the Bureau on matters directly 

related to the applicant that exceed the initial fee at hourly rates to be set by the Commission 

pursuant to M.G.L.c. 23K, § 30(i) including payment for all unusual or out of pocket 

expenses incurred by the Commission.  Timely Renewal fee:  $1000.00. 

(b)   Gaming Employee.  Initial fee:  $300.00   Renewal fee:  $300.00. 

(c)  Gaming Service Employee.  Initial fee:  $75.00  Renewal fee:  $75.00. 

(d)  Gaming Vendor-primary. Initial fee: $15,000.00, submitted with the application. The 

applicant shall be billed for the efforts of the Commission and the Bureau on matters directly 

related to the applicant that exceed the initial fee at hourly rates to be set by the Commission 

pursuant M.G.L. c. 23K, § 30(i) including payment for all unusual or out of pocket expenses 

incurred by the Commission.   Timely Renewal fee:  $15,000.00. 

(e)  Gaming Vendor–secondary.  Initial fee $5,000.00  Renewal fee $5,000.00. 

(f)   Gaming Vendor-qualifier.  No individual fee.  The fee shall be included as part of the 

application fee for the Gaming vendor. Any additional fees resulting from the investigation 

of a gaming vendor qualifier shall be assessed to the gaming vendor in accordance with 

205 CMR 134.15(2). 

152



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.15:   continued 

 

(g)   Non-gaming Vendor.  Initial fee:  $100.00  Renewal fee:  $100.00. 

(h)   Labor Organization.  Initial fee:  $200.00  Renewal fee:  $200.00. 

(i)   Replacement/Name or Address Changes.  $10.00. 

(j)   Late Fee.  a 10% late fee will be assessed to the initial application fee if a renewal 

application is not received by the Commission by the due date. 

 
(2)  The application fee for a license or registration may be increased to the extent that the cost 

of the background investigation relating to an applicant exceeds the application fee set forth in 

205 CMR 134.15(1).  The commission  shall advise the applicant in writing that an additional 

application fee is required and the manner in which the additional fee was calculated. Once an 

applicant is directed to submit an additional application fee, the commission will take no 

additional steps with respect to the application until the increased application fee is paid. In the 

event that an application fee is not promptly paid without just cause, the application may be 

denied. 

 
(3)   All fees must be submitted to the Bureau in the form of a certified check, cashier's check, 

personal check or electronic funds transfer payable to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

 
(4)   A processing fee of $30 will be assessed for return of dishonored checks. 

 
(5)    Payroll Deduction.  Licensing fees for applicants for a Gaming Employee license in 

accordance with 205 CMR 134.15(1)(b) and a Gaming Service Employee registration in 

accordance with 205 CMR 134.15(1)(c) shall be submitted on behalf of the applicant by the 

gaming establishment or vendor with which the individual is employed.   The gaming 

establishment or vendor may recover the cost of the fee by way of deduction from the 

individual's periodic salary payment. 

 
134.16:   Term of Licenses 

 
(1)  Licenses and registrations issued in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00 shall be valid for the 

following terms: 

(a)  Key Gaming Employees. Key Gaming employee licenses shall be for an initial term of 

three years. The initial term of a key gaming employee license shall expire and be renewable 

on the last day of the month on the third anniversary of the issuance date.  Key gaming 

employee license renewals shall be for a term of three years. 

(b)   Gaming Employees.  Gaming employee licenses shall be for an initial term of three 

years.  The initial term of a gaming employee license shall expire and be renewable on the 

last day of the month on the third anniversary of the issuance date. Gaming employee license 

renewals shall be for a term of three years. 

(c)   Gaming Service Employees.  Gaming service employee registrations shall be for an 

initial term of five years. The initial term of a Gaming service employee registration shall 

expire and be renewable on the last day of the month on the fifth anniversary of the issuance 

date.  Gaming service employee registration renewals shall be for a term of five years. 

(d)  Gaming Vendors and Gaming Vendor Qualifiers. Gaming vendor licenses and gaming 

vendor qualifier licenses shall be for an initial term of three years.  The initial term of a 

Gaming vendor license and gaming vendor qualifier license shall expire and be renewable 

on the last day of the month on the third anniversary of the issuance date.  Gaming vendor 

license and gaming vendor qualifier license renewals shall be for a term of three years. 

(e)   Non-gaming Vendors.  Non-gaming vendor registration shall be for an initial term of 

five years.  The initial term of a Non-gaming vendor license shall expire and be renewable 

153



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.16:   continued 

 

 on the last day of the month on the fifth anniversary of the issuance date.  Non-

gaming vendor registration renewals shall be for a term of five years. 

(f)  Labor Organizations. Labor organization registrations shall be for an initial term of one 

year. The initial term of a Labor organization registration shall expire and be renewable on 

the last day of the month on the first anniversary of the issuance date. 

 
(2)  Notwithstanding 205 CMR 134.16(1), licenses and registrations issued in accordance with 

205 CMR 134.00 may be issued with a conditional expiration date to coincide with any 

employment authorization issued by the United States which is less than the term of the license 

or registration.  A license or registration that is issued with such a conditional expiration date 

may be extended upon the presentation of proof of United States citizenship or authorization to 

work in the United States beyond the previous expiration date. Provided, however, no expiration 

date shall be extended beyond the term for which such a license would have been issued in 

accordance with 205 CMR 134.16(1). 

 
(3)    If a licensee or registrant has, in accordance with 205 CMR 134.17, made timely and 

sufficient application for a renewal, their license or registration shall not expire and the applicant 

shall remain in good standing until the Bureau has issued a decision on the application.  If a 

renewal application is received after the renewal date and the license expires before the 

Commission issues a new license, the person shall not be employable nor conduct business with 

the gaming establishment until a new license is issued. 

 
(4)    A license for a person for whom a positive determination of suitability was issued in 

accordance with 205 CMR 115.05(3) as part of the RFA-1 process and who filed an application 

in accordance with 205 CMR 134.08(2) in lieu of the complete application for the position for 

which they seek licensure shall be issued nunc pro tunc to the date of the suitability finding. 

 
(5)  All licenses and registrations issued in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00 shall be valid for 

employment with any Massachusetts gaming licensee. 

 
134.17:   Renewals 

 
(1)  At a minimum of 150 days prior to expiration, each Key gaming employee licensee, gaming 

employee licensee, gaming vendor licensee, and gaming vendor qualifier licensee shall submit 

a new and updated application in accordance with 205 CMR 134.08. 

 
(2)  At a minimum of 30 days prior to expiration, each gaming service employee registrant and 

non-gaming vendor registrant shall submit a new and updated application in accordance with 

205 CMR 134.08. 

 
(3)    It shall be the responsibility of the licensee or registrant to ensure that their license or 

registration is current. 

 
134.18:   Duties of Applicants and Licensees 

 
(1)    All applicants, licensees, and registrants shall have the continuing duty to provide any 

assistance or information required by the commission or the Bureau and to cooperate in any 

inquiry or investigation conducted by the commission or the Bureau. Refusal to answer or 

produce information, evidence or testimony by an applicant, licensee, or registrant may result in 

denial of the application or suspension or revocation of the license or registration. 

154



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.18:   continued 

 
(2)  No applicant, licensee, registrant shall willfully withhold information from, or knowingly 

give false or misleading information to, the commission or the Bureau.  If the commission or 

Bureau determines that an applicant, or a close associate of an applicant, has willfully provided 

false or misleading information, such applicant shall not be eligible to receive a license or 

registration under 205 CMR 134.00. Any licensee or registrant who willfully provides false or 

misleading information shall have its license conditioned, suspended or revoked by the 

commission. 

 
134.19:   Disciplinary Action 

 
(1)  Grounds for Disciplinary Action. Any license or registration issued under 205 CMR 134.00 

may be conditioned, suspended, or revoked, if the commission finds that a licensee or registrant 

has: 

(1)   been arrested or convicted of a crime while employed by a gaming establishment and 

failed to report the charges or the conviction to the commission; 

(2)   failed to comply with M.G.L. c. 23K, § 13; or 

(3) failed to comply with any provision of M.G.L. c. 23K or 205 CMR pertaining to 

licensees and registrants. 

 
(2)  Complaints. Any person may file a complaint against any person licensed or registered in 

accordance with 205 CMR 134.00.  All complaints relative to a licensee or registrant must be 

in writing on a form provided by the Commission.  All complaints must be received by the 

Commission within one year of the date of the alleged wrongdoing. The Commission or Bureau 

may itself initiate a complaint at any time notwithstanding the date of the alleged wrongdoing. 

 
(3)  Basis of Complaint. A complaint must allege wrongdoing by a licensee or registrant in the 

form of a violation of 205 CMR 134.19(1) and/or M.G.L. c. 23K. 

 
(4)   Review and Investigation of Complaints.  Every complaint filed shall be reviewed by the 

commission or its designee. A hearing may be convened, the complaint may be forwarded to the 

Bureau, or the complaint may be dismissed in the discretion of the commission or its designee. 

The Bureau may, if it elects, investigate a complaint prior to scheduling a hearing.   In its 

discretion, the Bureau may resolve informal patron complaints without formal investigation, 

notification of parties, or convening a hearing.  Failure of a complainant to cooperate in the 

investigation  may be grounds for dismissal of a complaint. 

 
(5)    Notice of Hearing.  If the Bureau determines that a hearing shall be held to resolve a 

complaint, reasonable notice shall be provided to the complainant and the licensee or registrant. 

Mailing of notice to the address on record with the Commission, or emailing the notice to the 

address provided by the licensee or registrant on their application for licensure or registration, 

shall be deemed satisfactory notice.  The notice of hearing shall contain: 

(a)   The name of the complainant; 

(b)  The date, time and place of said hearing; 

(c)   The location of the incident giving rise to the complaint. 

155



205 CMR:   MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION  

134.19:   continued 

 
(6)  Hearing. Hearings convened pursuant to 205 CMR 134.19 shall be conducted pursuant to 

801 CMR 1.02: Informal/Fair Hearing Rules and M.G.L. c. 30A. Any party may be represented 

by legal counsel. All parties shall be permitted to present an opening statement, testify on their 

own behalf, cross-examine all witnesses, present any relevant witness testimony, present any 

relevant documentary evidence, and offer a closing argument.  The Bureau may question any 

witness and include any records kept by the commission as exhibits. The Bureau may conclude 

the hearing at any time and issue a decision based on the evidence presented. 

If a licensee or registrant does not appear for the hearing, the Bureau may conduct a hearing 

in his or her absence and render a decision based upon the evidence presented, but only after 

making a finding that the licensee was provided notice as required by 205 CMR 134.19(5). 

The Bureau may designate a hearing officer to convene a hearing and either make a 

recommendation or issue a decision on its behalf. 

 
(7)   Subpoenas.  The Bureau may issue a subpoena in accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A, § 12 

requiring the attendance and testimony of witnesses and the production of any evidence, 

including books, records, correspondence or documents, relating to any matter in question in the 

proceeding. 

 
(8)       Decisions and Discipline of License and Registration Holders.  The Bureau shall issue 

a written decision after the hearing.  Decisions shall be issued in a reasonably prompt manner. 

The Bureau may suspend a license or registration for a fixed period of time, revoke a license or 

registration permanently, or issue a reprimand the licensee or registrant. In conjunction with or 

in lieu of these disciplinary measures, the Bureau may assess a fine pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23K, 

§ 36,  and recoup the costs of investigation.  Any license or registration that is suspended or 

revoked shall be forwarded to the Bureau immediately. A person whose license is revoked may 

apply in writing to the commission for reinstatement no sooner than five years from the date of 

the revocation. 

 
(9)   Appeals. 

(a)    Any person aggrieved by a decision of the hearing officer may, in writing, request 

review of said decision by the commission. The filing of such a petition shall not serve to 

stay any disciplinary action taken by the hearing officer. 

(b)    The commission may review such decision at its discretion. Such review is an 

administrative review that shall be based solely on the administrative record and is not to be 

construed as a second hearing on the same complaint(s). After review, the commission may 

either deny the petition or remand the matter to the hearings officer for further proceedings 

as directed. The filing of an appeal with the commission shall serve to toll the timing 

provisions of M.G.L. c. 30A, § 14 until such time as a final decision is rendered by the 

commission. 

(c)   Any person aggrieved by a decision of the hearings officer or the commission may 

appeal such decision in conformance with M.G.L. c. 30A, § 14. 
 
 
 

REGULATORY AUTHORITY 

 
205 CMR 134.00:  M.G.L. c. 23K, §§ 3, 12, 16, 30 and 31. 

 

156



 
 
 
 
 
 

7(a) – NO DOCUMENTS 
 
7(b) – NO DOCUMENTS 
 

157


	1 - Cover Page
	06-12-14  Commission Meeting Agenda - PUBLIC VERSION
	2a - Meeting Minutes May 29th
	3i - Summary of Somerville Objections to Wynn BAFO - 5pp
	3ii - Somerville FIP - 34pp
	3iii - Arbitrator Decision - 33pp
	4 - NO DOCS
	5a - NO DOCS
	5bi - Central Management System PPT  - 11pp
	5bii - Dereks spreadsheet FY 15 Budget - 1pg
	5biii - Penn Letter re Central Server - 5pp
	5biv - Scope of Work Complete - 8pp
	5c - Master Licensing Schedule
	5c - Region C Timeline 060314
	5di - PPT on Slot Machines and Gaming Positions - 9pp
	5dii - Penn letter on Gaming Positions - 3pp
	6a - 205 CMR 134 proposed amendments 6 9 14
	7a and 7b - NO DOCS



